
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, January 9, 2017, 7:00 P.M. 
Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of December 12, 2016 MOTION Pg. 20 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
City Manager’s Report MOTION Pg. 2 

Pg. 30 
Pg. 33 
Pg. 35 
Pg. 100 
Pg. 111 
Pg. 114 
Pg. 126 
Pg. 128 
Pg. 136 
Pg. 138 

6A.
6B.
6C.
6D.
6E.
6F.
6G.
6H.
6I.
6J.
6K.
6L.
6M.

MML Dues (Business Item) 
Comcast Notices 
Police Authority Interlocal Agmt, OPEB Agmt, Budget, & Lease (Business Item) 
Water Loss Detection Service Proposal (Business Item)  
Free Press Editorial on Governmental Revenues  
HydroCorp Service Proposal  
Water Tower Bids
KWA Update  
Consumers Energy 
Monthly Reports (Building, PD, Check Register, & DPW)  
Park Board Minutes 
Dixon Engineering Recommendation & Service Proposal (Business Item)

Pg. 157 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. MML Dues RESO Pg. 14 
8B. Water Loss Detection Service Proposal RESO Pg. 15 
8C. Police Authority  RESO Pg. 15 
8D. Street Update  DISC 
8E. Water Tower Maintenance Bids  RESO Pg. 17 
8F. Cross Connection Program Services RESO Pg. 18 
8G. Appointments  RESO Pg. 19 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

Next Month Calendar   
Downtown Development Authority: Thursday, January 12, 2017, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB (Cancelled) 
Fire Board:  Monday, January 16, 2017, 6:00 p.m., Public Safety Building 
City Council:   Monday, January 23, 2017, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB   
Police Authority:  Wednesday, January 25, 2017, 10:00 a.m., PDBMB 
Park Board:  Wednesday, February 1, 2017, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB  
Planning Commission:   Tuesday, February 7, 2017, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB 
Park Board:  Wednesday, February 1, 2017, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB 
City Council:   Monday, February 13, 2017, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB 

Pg. 159 

City Council Packet 1 January 9, 2017



 
City of Swartz Creek 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Regular Council Meeting of Monday, January 9, 2017 - 7:00 P.M. 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE:   January 6, 2017 
 
ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 

 
 OUTSTANDING APPEALS (No Change of Status) 

 
Appeals that the city is preparing to do full appraisals on are the Topvalco (Kroger) 
property and O’Reilly Auto Parts. These are newer submissions that will take some 
time to resolve themselves.  
 
I expect a future negotiation for the office building, for which we are awaiting some 
market data (Huizinga Properties). A complete listing of outstanding appeals is as 
follows (note that the S.C. Mini Storage is also settled). 
 

Year Parcel # docket Owner Petitioner's Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable Status
2015 58-02-200-029 15-002787 S.C. Mini Storage Steve Johnson 765,300      765,300    550,000    550,000    stip pending
2016 58-02-200-029 15-002787 S.C. Mini Storage Steve Johnson 861,000      859,495    550,000    550,000    
2016 58-31-626-002 16-001553 Huizinga Properties Mark Pendery 131,800      131,800    85,000     85,000     answered 6/21/16
2016 58-36-576-012 16-002714 Topvalco/Kroger H. Adam Cohen 2,239,700   2,044,916  1,100,000 1,100,000 answered 8/2/16
2016 58-31-551-006 16-003390 O'Reilly Auto Parts Thomas Randle 523,900      453,942    150,000    150,000    answered  

 
 STREETS (See Individual Category) 

 
 MORRISH AND BRISTOL SIGNAL (No Change of Status) 

Consumers Energy was spotted onsite on November 7th and again the following 
week. This is a good sign. Hopefully, the Genesee County Road Commission staff 
will be onsite soon after to finish signal installation. 
 

 2017-2020 TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) (No Change of Status) 
The three year plan for street funding has been drafted by the county, and the city 
has committed to a 20% match for those streets that were awarded funding.  Based 
upon discussion in October, I submitted a letter to the Genesee County Metropolitan 
Planning Commission indicating that we could not make good use of the federal 
funds for Worchester and directing them to reallocate such funds. That project has 
been removed from the Traffic Improvement Program, leaving only Fairchild. 
 
Listed below is the breakdown for Fairchild, including federal funding: 

Road 
Point of 

Beginning 
Point of 

End 
Length 
(Miles) Lanes 

Lane 
Feet 

Width 
(Feet) ADT 

Total 
Cost 

Federal 
Match 

Local 
Match 

Fairchild Cappy Miller 0.28 2 2956.8 44 2456 $305,104 $247,234 $61,021 
 

     

City Council Packet 2 January 9, 2017



 STREET PROJECT UPDATES (Business Item) 
This is a standing section of the report on the status of streets as it relates to our 
dedicated levy, 20 year plan, ongoing projects, state funding, and committee work.  
 
Bids have been released, with the opening scheduled for the third week in January. No 
further action of the city council will be required until February or March, after the bids 
are received and a complete financial picture of the project costs, the city’s total debts, 
savings, and operational cash flows is available.  
 
Once that information is analyzed by the financial advisor, a recommendation on the 
final borrowing amount will be made and the bonds can be placed with city council 
approval. This would be expected to occur in March or April and be in line with our 
annual budget planning.  
 
Concerning the decorative lighting, we met with another division of Consumers Energy 
that works with private lighting installations. This is different than the regulated public 
systems. For example, the street lights on Fortino Drive are part of the public, regulated 
street light system that are operated by Consumers and billed with our city-wide, 
monthly street lighting contract. The lights in the city parking lot off of Morrish Road are 
part of our private system and are billed with a separate meter just as any home or 
business would be. The public systems are very regulated in what can be used and 
how it is installed. Private systems are much more flexible, though metered.  
 
So, while Consumers indicated that it would cost over $150,000 to install decorative 
replacement lights throughout the street reconstruction area as part of the public 
system. It appears we can do so on a metered account for about $110,000. The private 
system also allows for LED lights, which are cheaper to operate and give off better 
lighting. We are using this new contact at CE to attempt to get back in touch with the 
public division of CE to investigate a partial public system upgrade (e.g. decorative 
lights at intersections only). Our goal is to be able to present the city council with 
options for lighting with the street bids. Right now, we have the options for: 
 

1. Do nothing 
2. Upgrade all CE lights to decorative fixtures on the public system (~$150k) 
3. Upgrade all CE lights to decorative on a private system (~$110k) 
4. Upgrade some lights on CE’s public system to decorative fixtures (?) 
5. Upgrade CE lights to LED cobra head (non-decorative)? 

 
 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change of Status) 

Sewer work has already been completed for the east side of Seymour (Greenleaf) 
and parts of Chesterfield. There is some restoration work to do, but the entire 
project should be invoiced and closed this month without any further issues.  
 

 KWA (Update) 
The latest expectation is that we will be receiving KWA water by October of 2017, 
less than one year!  Staff with the county indicated that a budget will be set up in the 
comings months, with early indications being a stable or slightly lower rate. This rate 
should float for a few years, while operations are standardized and analyzed.  

City Council Packet 3 January 9, 2017



In addition, there is a report from Jeffrey Wright included in the packet. He covers a 
number of issues that will help us stay informed. He is also requesting a letter of 
support from the city. I am not opposed to writing such. Please let me know if there 
is any objection.  

 WATER LOSS (Business Item)
The county is going to be checking the registers on their meters to ensure they are
the right type for our master reads. As discovered with some of our commercial
customers, a register meant for a specific size meter can read other meter sizes, but
the results can vary tremendously. Mr. Svrcek feels this could be an issue. We are
also going to work with the county to decrease pressure once the Winston-Miller
valves and flow are tested again.

We are also recommending that we pursue another avenue of approach to finding 
potential leaks in the system. Mr. Svrcek has been working with a company from 
Ohio on the assisted living project and finds them to be qualified to perform such 
work at a very reasonable cost. Their proposals are attached. Given the amount of 
unbilled water, their fees would be but a drop in the bucket when compared to the 
potential savings. I recommend we move forward. Doing so will either result in 
useful findings or rule out this level of leak.  

 SHARED SERVICES, POLICE DEPARTMENTS (Business Item)
The authority met on December 28, 2016.  At that meeting, they affirmed a budget and
requested the city to consider the affirmation of the Interlocal Agreement in a manner
that would enable a February 1, 2017 ‘effective date’ (formal start date).  Mundy
Township has already voted to move forward. I have included the resolution necessary
to effect that change.  I have also included the Interlocal Agreement (including
employee list and assets), the lease for the city public safety building, the Other Post
Employment Benefit Agreement, and the authority budget. All council members should
have all of the other authority policies, procedures, and operational descriptions in their
possession already.

Note that, should the council chose to proceed, there does not appear to be any way to 
accomplish a full transition with a single legal instrument or resolution. Much of the 
transfer and onboarding will need to occur in separate steps moving forward based 
upon administrative action, council action, or the actions of third parties. For example, 
the final pension liability currently owed by the city cannot be known in real time. This 
actuarial will be made available at a future point, as will obligations to transfer pension 
assets. MERS will almost certainly require a future resolution of the city council to 
transfer assets.  

The authority staff will be bring presentation materials and a number of professionals to 
the meeting to offer insight on the proposed authority and answer questions. I expect 
to see Mr. Atkinson and/or Mr. Bade, as well as attorneys from McGraw Morris 
and the authority’s CPA. They will be able to elaborate on the operations, financing, 
and status of the authority above and beyond the bound materials that were 
previously submitted and my own experience with the proposal.  

City Council Packet 4 January 9, 2017



To the extent that I am able to comment, the authority staff and board do appear to 
have a budget that is in line with the current budget of the city (see below). This was an 
expectation of the Interlocal Agreement. Based upon changes to this budget and the 
scheduling/staffing of officers/investigators, it also appears that the authority should be 
able to meet or exceed the level of service as measured in combined patrol hours, 
investigator hours, office hours, and support. As noted previously by staff, there are 
expected benefits from economies of scale that include enhanced training, additional 
supervision of patrol officers by command patrol officers, and consolidation of 
administration.  
 
After observing the evolution of this process, I find the concept of consolidation to be 
beneficial.  After many revisions, drafts, and advancements in the study, it now appears 
that the objective measures expected of the agreement (budget, operating procedures, 
policies, etc.) have been reported, and that the ultimate success or failure shall now 
depend upon the ongoing management of the organization. Simply put, I believe 
authority staff and the board have produced enough evidence to demonstrate that the 
concept CAN work. However, the only way to know if it WILL work is to put it in motion 
and adapt to issues that may become apparent. There is no amount of planning that 
can guarantee success (especially with the understanding that ‘success’ can be judged 
by many measures and attributes). 
 
From the city staff standpoint, I can attest that the budget figure reached for the 
proposed fiscal year is less than that proposed for our current fiscal year, by a small 
margin. A summary follows: 
 
City current police cost for FY 17 (less building):    $1,050,471 
City cost less revenues from school/ordinances/reimbursements:  $966,716 
City cost less expenses for current retiree healthcare:   $944,216* 
 
City cost for authority services per authority budget:   $990,095 
City cost less OPEB expense:      $960,095** 
City cost less expected building rent & some one-time costs:  $938,858*** 
 

*This is the approximate number that the city anticipated being able to commit to 
the authority, with the understanding that building costs, existing retiree healthcare 
costs, and some other expenses will remain with the city. 
 
**This expense accounts for the future retiree healthcare costs. Currently, the city 
does not set funds aside for this and accrues that expense as a liability. The 
authority shall be expensing this liability and setting funds aside. 
 
***This figure also includes a half year of rent payments/incomes, some known 
startup costs (software and a one-time OPEB valuation). It does not account for 
other one time purchases such as uniforms, equipment and some professional 
service consultation. It is expected that these costs will not be in future budgets to 
the extent they are in the initial budget, thereby resulting in a reduction for those 
specific items. 
 

City Council Packet 5 January 9, 2017



As one might expect from me, I wish we had more time to prepare every detail of the 
potential merger. However, at some point, we can enter the ‘paralysis by analysis’ zone 
in which nothing happens. We have delayed much to take a harder look at the level of 
service, operational plan, facility plan, and budget. The big items have been addressed. 
As previously stated, we cannot account for every attribute or variable prior to voting.  
 
I stand by the concept of the consolidated authority and evidence has been presented 
to indicate in CAN work, though no one can guarantee its success.  Hopefully the 
council members are comfortable making a decision after hearing the final presentation 
in light of the other materials delivered so far.  
 

 POLICE AUTHORITY FACILITY PLAN CONCEPT (Business Item) 
At their meeting on November 23, 2016, the authority conditionally approved leases 
with the city and township. The leases mirror each other in terms and value. This 
means that the authority is planning and budgeting to have one lease with the city, 
paying about $21,240 a year to the city, and it would also have a lease with the 
township for the new facility, paying about $74,000 a year to Mundy. The expectation is 
that the authority will place appropriate amounts in the budget to accommodate these 
building costs, with the intention to officially commence leases mid-year. 
 
As far as it impacts operations, I think the arrangement is very sound. It keeps a police 
presence in the city and also arranges for coverage in the township that can double as 
a very modern headquarters that the authority can grow into. The costs will clearly add 
to the authority budget (and the city’s contribution to said budget). However, the city is 
receiving payments for building maintenance to offset those costs.  
 
The lease is attached and is included in the resolution to accept the authority budget.  
 

 SPRINGBROOK EAST & HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (No Change of Status) 
The lighting has finally been installed! The developer has also placed funds into escrow 
to fund the remaining items on the punch list, including curb backfill on Russell and 
sidewalk work.   
 
All lots in Springbrook East have sold. The city is now clear of this project as a land 
owner interest. 
 
The city still owns four lots in Heritage Village. We have no plan for these at this time. 
Perhaps an auction of these lots is in order. In this case, I am not sure if there was an 
intention to share additional revenues with the association or not. The city sold one lot 
in 2014 “at cost.” Purchase agreements with other buyers fell through.  

 
 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS (No Change of Status) 

We have been making the streets passable by adding more asphalt millings to the 
base and removing encroaching vegetation. We are also ordering some street signs 
and “No Dumping” signs.  
 
The street committee considered this neighborhood at their meeting on August 30th. 
They believe the city should reach out to all property owners with vacant lots.  
However, it is thought that a cost estimate for the required improvements (sanitary and 

City Council Packet 6 January 9, 2017



storm water) should be prepared beforehand.  City engineer, Lou Fleury, is looking into 
the work previously done to see if the storm water plan is detailed enough to price out. 
At this point, he feels another $6,000 - $8,000 is needed to revisit the plans for the 
current scope and needs.  
 
Gaines Township tentatively agreed to work with us on finding solutions, as had the 
church on Hill Road that may be involved with the location of utilities. I await more 
formal commitments, post election, before discussing the specifics of engineering.  
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
This has been sent to print. You should have a copy by now. Let me know what you 
think.  
 

 CAPPY LANE LIFT STATION (Update) 
Aside from restoration, which will await spring, the work is complete.  The project had a 
few change orders for additional work, but it still came in under budget. Examples of 
additional work include the replacement of riser pipes that were to remain in place. 
These were felt to be a future maintenance risk given that the rest of the improvements 
are planned to have a 40+ year life. Overall, we are very pleased with this project.  
 

 SUNOCO (Update) 
The outstanding issues regarding liability and the location of monitoring wells have 
stalled the process.  As previously reported, EM has dragged their feet on this and are 
requesting agreement features that our counsel finds unreasonable. While it may be 
possible to sort these differences out, I suspect it is not worth it. At this point, we have 
no liability that we are aware of as a property owner, nor are we aware of any risk to the 
general public or adjacent property owners.  
 
With that said, I suspect the DDA will begin planning for the site’s reuse. If EM can 
come to terms with our needs, we can certainly review any proposed site license 
agreement or other offers. In the meantime, we should move forward.  

 
 ELMS PARK RENOVATIONS (No Change of Status) 

The restrooms are complete, and the books are closed on this component of the 
project. The remainder of the grant funded improvements will be bid during the winter 
months when the contractor interest and pricing will be in our favor.  While any delay is 
frowned upon, this will enable the improvements to coincide with the Dog Park and Tot 
Lot projects. There should not be any adverse impacts on our grant status.  
 
The dog park has been approved.  The scouts indicated that this should be installed 
early in 2017. The park board will be addressing operating rules/guidelines for this 
facility this summer. In the meantime, we await progress by the scouts. 

 
 CLOCK DONATION (Update) 

The clock has been dedicated and accepted by the city. With the proclamation to the 
family complete, this item will not appear in future reports.  
 

 WATER TOWER PAINTING (Business Item) 

City Council Packet 7 January 9, 2017



Bids have been received. The low bid is for $78,400 and has been affirmed as a 
qualified responsible bid by Dixon Engineering.  The estimate was set at $126,000, so 
we are getting a good price.  The bid tabulation sheet, engineer’s recommendation, and 
Notice of Award are included in the packet.  I have included a resolution to award this 
project. We expect the tower to be painted beginning in April. The process is expected 
to take about three weeks and will restore the tower to its previous condition.  
 
This project also requires a high degree of technical oversight. Dixon Engineering, the 
firm that provided the bid specifications and contractor pre-qualifications, has submitted 
a proposal to conduct inspections, testing, and oversight to ensure the project is 
completed to standards and specifications. Their scope of services is attached, and 
their fee is $11,000. As you can see, this is quite involved. I have placed an additional 
recital in the resolution to approve this service.  
 
Note that we will also be looking to replace most of the fencing surrounding the sight to 
better improve security and appearance. 
 

 TRAIL PLANNING CONCEPTS (No Change of Status) 
We await OHM to begin investigating trail options. I suspect they will look for park 
board, planning commission, and general input at some point. I will keep the council 
informed.  
 

 DISC GOLF CONCEPT (No Change of Status) 
Conceptual approval has been granted for a course in Winshall Park. With winter 
fast approaching, interest in fundraising has died down. I will keep the city council 
informed.  
 

 REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES (Update) 
The State of Michigan oversees a new program in which cities become certified as 
“Redevelopment Ready Communities”.  The intent of the program is to encourage 
and help cities streamline development and review processes in order to better 
move forward with implementing plans for downtown and commercial improvements. 
An advantage of being certified is that the state will assist such communities with 
marketing specific sites and/or plans, such as the raceway or downtown properties. 
 
I have taken one of two courses required to begin the process. The next course is in 
March. After that is complete, I will likely present the city council with a resolution to 
pursue certification. Doing so would start a process in which we review our 
ordinances, permits, applications, and processes related to building, planning, and 
zoning. The state will then encourage revisions as needed in order to achieve what 
they believe is the optimal set of policies and procedures (certification).  
 

 MEDICAL MARIHUANA (Update) 
The city has no zoning ordinances that enable any of the five state licensed facilities 
(growing, processing, testing, transport, and provisioning). This is within the city’s 
rights to enable any, all, or none of those uses. The planning commission is 
expected to consider those uses throughout the spring and summer months and 
make recommendations accordingly. Since no licenses can be granted until 
December of 2017, this is expected to be timely. I will keep the city council informed.  

City Council Packet 8 January 9, 2017



 
 DEBT (No Change of Status) 

At previous meetings, we have discussed existing city debt and how that relates to 
existing fund balances. Staff believes that we should consider paying off more debt, 
if not all of it. Why? Due to circumstances, local governments cannot invest savings 
in any meaningful way. This means our savings (fund balances) are worth less each 
year in terms of spending power. Meanwhile, we pay interest on some notes at over 
4.35% from those same funds.  For unfunded retirement, we lose a theoretical 
7.75% each year, though this is likely 6% in practice.  
 
In the spring, we analyzed our fund balances in terms of months-of-operating.  This 
means that if we had $100 in savings after all expenditures for a year and spent 
$200 each year from that fund, we would have six months operating remaining. 
What we found is that sewer and general fund were in very good positions, with the 
ability to make expenditures on debt or deferred maintenance on facilities. This 
practice is known as spending down healthy savings. We believe we should 
seriously consider details in the near future.  
 
The largest debt we have is in the shape of the unfunded, accrued liabilities for 
retirement. These liabilities hit all major funds, but are owed mostly from the general 
fund.  If the authority forms, there is an expectation that we pay down all of the 
accrued debt for the police unit. Frankly, we should probably do this anyway since 
their returns are much higher than what we achieve.   
 
Note that there is still some debt for the other units, but the Supervisors and 
AFSCME are closed and have no new covered employees. In fact, there are no 
current pension-eligible supervisors and only two active AFSCME employees in the 
pension fund. Everyone else is retired. We will have a better understanding of what 
is owed after our actuarial evaluation by MERS.  
 
The city also has a note outstanding for city hall. According to the information we 
received, bonds can only be called on an interest payment date. The next interest 
payment date is March 1, 2017 at that time the payoff will be $405,952.50 If we pay 
off the bond early we will save about $57,000 in interest. The payoff would come 
from general fund 40%, Garbage Fund 10% and 25% from each water and sewer 
fund.  Ms. Aguilar believes we should seriously consider the early payoff. The fund 
balance in each of these funds is healthy enough to pay these down.  
 

General Fund: $162,381 
Garbage Fund: $40,595.25 
Water Fund:  $101,488.12 
Sewer Fund:  $101,488.12  

 
The sewer fund also has a separate debt, which incidentally is on the agenda this 
evening. The interest on this is approximately $20,000 annually. We are making 
inquiries into the nature of any possible early payoff for this as well. This note is held 
by the county and is noted to amount to approximately $500,000 in our audit. Details 
will follow. For now, there appears to be enough interest from Clayton and Gaines to 
make payoff of this note in the spring probable. 

City Council Packet 9 January 9, 2017



 
The one area of pause we must consider is the street projects. The bids going out 
this year could come in high, requiring a delay or additional funds from the general 
fund or borrowed from the sewer fund. As such, a clear picture of debt obligations 
will not be known until the final police authority pension liability is known and street 
bids are received. Related to the street bonding, we will likely require professional, 
certified financial advisor services in addition to our legal bond counsel. They can 
probably assist with all of the concerns related to our debt. 
 
There is a lot to consider here, and much of it is financial jargon. If you have any 
questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to ask.  
 

 SPORTS CREEK RACEWAY TEMPORARY LAND USE (No Change of Status) 
General Motors and their transport affiliates have been using area parking lots for the 
temporary storage of new trucks that are produced locally and require pre-transport 
storage. They worked out a deal with the raceway to use their open parking area for the 
storage of such vehicles for a period of 30-90 days. Based upon our zoning ordinance, 
we are able to approve such temporary uses based upon performance criteria and 
affirmation by the police and fire professionals. We have conditionally granted approval 
of this temporary use based upon the lease terms, security, duration, estimated trip 
count, and type of product storage.  
 
There has been no stated intention to continue with this use once the permit expires. 
There has also been no indication that there is a buyer or other use proposed. We will 
monitor the performance in terms of traffic, security, lighting glare, and other factors for 
the time being.  
 

 TAX REVERTED PROPERTIES (No Change of Status) 
Three properties that were not picked up by the city for back taxes this last summer 
have been passed up by the private sector at the auction. The city will be receiving 
these properties from the county. The three properties are: 
 

3323 Heritage Boulevard (Vacant condo lot) 
3329 Heritage Boulevard (Vacant condo lot) 
5157 Morrish Road (Single Family Home) This is the home targeted for 
demolition. 

 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (Update) 

We have $12,000 set aside for demolition and another $16,819 set aside from the 
Genesee County Home Program.  Once the title to 5157 Morrish transfers to the city 
from the county, we can begin abatement inspections and release bid specifications 
for demolition.  
 

 FINANCE DIRECTOR DUTIES (Update) 
Mrs. Korth is expected to take on the duties of Finance Director and Office Manager.  
In addition, we are anticipating a potential need for some professional consulting 
services to peer review some of the budgeting changes and alterations to our 
internal controls, policies, and procedures. This costs should be less that $10,000 for 
the fiscal year and be temporary in nature.  

City Council Packet 10 January 9, 2017



 
I will be working with staff to create a new job description for this position, along with 
the accompanying compensation. This should be presented to the council on 
January 23rd. Note that Ms. Aguilar’s position is not expected to be replaced by a full 
time staff member. Instead, we have previously moved Ms. Aguilar’s Clerk duties to 
Ms. Eskew in 2016 and are also looking to reduce staff duties be engaging the 
following changes: 
 

1. Reduce accounts payable frequency from weekly to every two weeks 
2. Contract for payroll services 
3. Develop an online/electronic bill pay system 
4. Email utility bills 
5. Reduce budget line items and association entries 
6. Secure a Lock Box system for bill pay at Chase Bank 
7. Replace Ms. Key (part time receptionist that  left in late 2016) 

 
 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  

 
 COMCAST (Update) 

There is another notice from Comcast regarding their offerings and channel line up. 
They have also sent notice that they will be leasing a spot on Miller Road near 
Target to better serve area customers with equipment and support needs.  
 

 FREE PRESS EDITORIAL (Update) 
I included an editorial from the Detroit Free Press that provides another take on the 
property tax structure in Michigan. This problem goes hand in hand with the states 
crumbling infrastructure. Because communities rely on Michigan statues and state 
budgetary conditions for property tax revenues and revenue sharing, we are tied to 
these systems.  I hope to see change. 
 

 CONSUMERS ENERGY (Update) 
There is a notice of hearing from CE.  
 

 MONTHLY REPORTS (Update) 
The monthly reports are all included except for the budget report, which will be in 
the January 23rd packet.   
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (No Change of Status) 

The commission did not meet in January. There next meeting is scheduled for 
February 7, 2017.  
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY(No Change of Status) 
The DDA met on November10th.  They were given an update about the Sunoco 
station and conversation ensued regarding its use after any potential soil clean up 
by Exxon. As noted in the “Sunoco” section above, the DDA is interested in funding 
and planning such improvements. They request the ability to lead the planning 
process, conditioned upon input from the public and planning commission, as well 
as final approval by the city council.  

City Council Packet 11 January 9, 2017



 
The DDA’s next regular meeting is scheduled for January 14.   
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (Update) 
There are no pending variances, appeals, interpretations, or other business before 
the Zoning Board of Appeals. They meet on the third Wednesday of each month 
when business demands it.  
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update) 
The park board met on January 4th to discuss fundraising, select officers, and 
review the park reservation form. The attached draft minutes explain the details. 
The group is planning to continue with the slip and slide fundraiser, pumpkin sale, 
and one or two other events.  
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW (Update) 
The BoR met on December 13, 2016. They heard a couple Principle Residency 
Exemption cases. They do not meet again until the March sessions on general 
appeals. 
 

NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 

 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE DUES (Business Item) 
Included in the packet is an invoice and resolution for the City’s continued participation 
in the Michigan Municipal League.  This group provides routing services that are 
beneficial, such as training and statistics (including the revenue sharing statistics 
included in the current packet). They also come in handy when there are state-wide 
issues or concerns that are tough to address as an individual city. Examples include the 
recent lobby action in favor of increased road monies. Dues for the last year were 
$3,073. This year’s dues are $3,082, an increase of 0.3%. 

 
 HYDRO DESIGNS THREE YEAR CONTRACT (Business Item) 

As the Council is aware, we have to maintain a Cross Connection Control Program in 
order to meet MI-Department of Environmental Quality requirements.  Cross 
connections are connections to the water system that have the potential to draw unsafe 
sources of water into the system during a low pressure event. An example would be an 
irrigation system draining water from a lawn back into the public system during a water 
main break. To prevent this, there are requirements for back flow preventers, such as 
check valves, in the system. Common connections include restaurant soda fountain 
machines, irrigation systems, boilers, and industrial equipment.  
 
We out-source inspection and enforcement of this to a company called HydroCorp 
(previously known as Hydro-Design).  The work involves commercial and industrial 
compliancy with back flow prevention into the public water system.  The program is on-
going and requires testing and inspection. The company has done a fantastic job and is 
proposing services for the next cycle at $293 per month, an increase of  2.8% 
($8/month) from 2014 prices. This translates to $3,516 a year for a 36 month 
agreement.  A resolution is included with the agenda.   
 

 APPOINTMENTS (Business Item) 

City Council Packet 12 January 9, 2017



If the police authority effective date is approved, our representatives’ terms to that 
authority board are due to expire. Per the agreement, the city is to appoint three 
representatives at the city’s discretion.  The Mayor recommends staggering terms so 
that the departure of any member does not result in a loss of all ongoing knowledge 
or familiarity with board functions. Given our allotment of three board members, he 
recommends Mr. Porath continue to serve with the board for three years, Mr. 
Krueger for two years, and Mr. Pinkston for one year. A resolution is attached.  
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests, Comments, and Notes    
   

Marihuana and Rentals: The state legislature is considering the passage of bills 
that would enable landlords to prohibit the growing and smoking of medical 
marihuana in their buildings. This is something we have heard complaints about 
in the community and which, until this occurrence, our attorney felt there was 
little we could do.  
911 Surcharge: The 911 consortium is looking to increase the monthly 
surcharge to $1.86, an increase of 50%. 
Sidewalk Liability: Gov. Rick Snyder this week signed a law that gives local 
governments some extra protection: the so-called open-and-obvious defense 
that's long been available to private businesses. This reduces our risk of being 
sued by a large margin. However, we have no plans to alter our standards for 
the treatment of our publicly owned sidewalks or the privately owned sidewalks 
in the right-of-way. 

City Council Packet 13 January 9, 2017



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, January 9, 2017, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 170109-4A MINUTES – DECEMBER 12, 2016 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, December 12, 2016, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 170109-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of January 9, 2017, to be circulated and 
placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170109-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of January 9, 
2017, including reports and communications, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170109-8A MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE DUES 
 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Swartz Creek renew its annual membership in 
the Michigan Municipal League for the period from 02/01/2017 to 01/31/2018, and 
further, appropriate an amount not to exceed $3,082 for payment thereof, funds to be 
apportioned across revenue bearing accounts as determined by the Treasurer. 
  

City Council Packet 14 January 9, 2017



Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 

Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 170109-8B LEAK DETECTION PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns, operates, and maintains a water 
distribution system, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city has been experiencing higher than normal rates of water loss, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, audits of billing accounts, large customer meters, and staff leak detection 
have not found significant sources of water loss, and 
 
WHEREAS, the city is now seeking expert consultation from the Genesee County 
Drain Commission – Water and Waste Division, as well as other sources, to determine 
significant sources of loss, and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Svrcek, in working with Aqua-Line Leak Detection Services of Findlay, 
Ohio on components of a private distribution system within the city, has found them to 
be capable and qualified to perform such services for the city. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
approves the proposal for such professional services, with total costs for the 
engagement not exceeding $5,000 for leak detection services as outlined in the 
proposal dated December 8, 2016.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council directs the City Manager to 
execute said proposal on behalf of the city and for the city Treasurer to appropriate 
such costs to all impacted funds as appropriate.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170109-8C RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMOUNT OF MONEY 

THAT IS TO BE CONTRIBUTED BY THE CITY OF 
SWARTZ CREEK (“CITY”) TO THE METRO POLICE 
AUTHORITY OF GENESEE COUNTY (“POLICE 
AUTHORITY”) AND AFFIRMING THE CITY’S 
PARTICIPATION IN THE POLICE AUTHORITY, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO 
EXECUTE ALL CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE POLICE 

City Council Packet 15 January 9, 2017



AUTHORITY, AND OFFICIALLY DISBAND THE CITY 
POLICE DEPARTMENT. 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City operates a police department to provide public safety to the 
residents and visitors to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Mundy (“Township”) operates a police 
department to provide public safety to the residents and visitors to the Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City entered into an agreement with the Township on October 12, 
2015, pursuant to the Michigan Urban Cooperation Act of 1967 to conditionally form 
the Police Authority (the “Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement defined an Agreement Date and an Effective Date, with 
the Effective Date being 210 days after the Agreement Date. Which was July 6, 2016; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council and the Township Board agreed that it was in the best 
interest of the City and the Township to continue to pursue the establishment of the 
Police Authority and extended the Agreement through October 31, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council and the Township Board agreed that it could not 
complete the requirements of the Agreement prior to October 31, 2016 and 
determined it was in the best interest of the Township and the City to continue to 
pursue the establishment of the Police Authority and further extended the Agreement 
through June 30, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City to establish 
the Police Authority and thereafter disband the City Police Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current City Police Department employees will become employees of 
the Police Authority, pursuant to the seniority levels set forth in Attachment A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City will be required to pay any shortfalls if it is determined that the 
retirement accounts for those employees are not fully funded through the time of 
transfer of the employees to the Police Authority, and 
 
WHEREAS, going forward, the City agrees to contribute to the Other Post 
Employment Benefits for those employees consistent with the terms of an agreement 
thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, the creation of the Authority will require the execution of multiple 
agreements to effectuate the transfer of employees and creation of the successor 
accounts, fringe benefits, and property lease;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council affirms that the recitals 
stated above are true and correct and are incorporated herein by reference. 

City Council Packet 16 January 9, 2017



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council has been 
provided an estimate of the amount of money the City is required to contribute to the 
Police Authority and the City hereby affirms and establishes the City’s partnership in 
the Metro Police Authority, with the allocation of such funds and participation for 
services received, excluding prosecution, set at 30% of the budget not otherwise 
provided for by contracting agencies such as schools. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Mayor and City Clerk are 
hereby granted the authority by the City Council to execute all contracts, including the 
building lease, necessary to effectuate the implementation of the Police Authority. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that, the City Council hereby 
officially disbands the City Police Department and transfers employees, assets, and 
police powers to the Police Authority effective February 1, 2017 at 12:00 a.m. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170109-8E WATER TOWER MAINTENANCE BIDS 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns, operates, and maintains a water 
distribution system, including a 300,000 gallon Toro Ellipse Elevated Water Tower, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the water tower, though structurally sound, is physically disconnected 
from the water distribution system, and  
 
WHEREAS, the water tower houses a wireless network provider and there is 
additional demonstrated interest to house wireless cellular carriers, and 
 
WHEREAS, the water tower may yet be reconnected to the city and/or county water 
system to assist with the maintenance of pressures and/or provision of emergency 
water supplies in the future, and 
 
WHEREAS, alternate uses for the structure may also be advisable or desirable, and 
 
WHEREAS, painting of the structure is highly advisable for protective and aesthetic 
purposes if the tower is not to be removed in the foreseeable future, and 
 
WHEREAS, the city requested sealed bids, and received five submissions, with the 
lowest qualified bid being Fedewa Inc.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
approves the proposal by Fedewa Inc. of Hastings, Michigan, in the amount of 

City Council Packet 17 January 9, 2017



$78,400, plus a 15% contingency for painting and other maintenance services related 
to the water tower. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council approves the professional service 
agreement for contract oversight and inspections by Dixon Engineering and Inspection 
Services of Lake Odessa, Michigan, in the amount of $11,000.  
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council directs the Mayor to execute said 
Notice of Award and the Agreement for Water Storage Tank on behalf of the city and 
for the city Treasurer to appropriate such costs to the Water Fund.  
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170109-8F CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, to remain compliant to the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1976, PA 339, the 
City of Swartz Creek instituted a Cross Connection Control and Compliancy Program, 
and solicited and awarded sealed bids to HydroCorp of Troy, Michigan to implement 
the program, and; 

 
WHEREAS, HydroCorp has brought the City into full compliancy with the Act and MI-
DEQ Regulations, and; 

 
WHEREAS, it is mandatory for the City to continue the program in order to remain 
compliant with the Act and MI-DEQ Regulations, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the work performed by HydroCorp is a specialized professional service 
and cannot be done by regularly employed crews of the City, and; 

 
WHEREAS, it is efficient and desirable for the City to remain with a single company to 
maintain compliancy and continued continuity of the established records currently 
maintained by HydroCorp, and further, HydroCrop has offered a three year agreement 
for $293 per month, an increase of 2.8% over 2014 prices. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek appropriate an 
amount not to exceed $293 per month for 36 months, total accrued amount not to 
exceed $10,548, payment for continuation of the City’s Cross Connection Compliancy 
and Control Program, to HydroCorp, a Michigan corporation located in Troy, Michigan, 
agreement period to run from January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2019, funds to 
be appropriated from 590, Water Supply Fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the City Council approves the cross connection 
professional services agreement included in the January 9, 2017 city council packet 
and direct the Mayor and City Clerk to execute said agreement on behalf of the city. 

 

City Council Packet 18 January 9, 2017



Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 

Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170109-8G COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Michigan, the Charter and Ordinances of the City 
of Swartz Creek, interlocal agreements in which the City of Swartz Creek is a member, 
and previous resolutions of the city council require and set terms of offices for various 
appointments to city boards and commissions, as well as appointments to non-city 
boards and commissions seeking representation by city officials; and 
 
WHEREAS, there exist vacancies in a number of said positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, said appointments are Mayoral appointments, subject to affirmation of the 
city council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council concur with 
the Mayor and City Council appointments as follows: 

 
  

#17019-8G1 MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   Curt Porath 
   Metro Police Authority of Genesee County 
   Three year term, expiring January 31, 2020 
 

#17019-8G2 MAYOR APPOINTMENT:   David Krueger 
   Metro Police Authority of Genesee County 

Two year term, expiring January 31, 2019 
 

#17019-8G3 MAYOR RE-APPOINTMENT:   Dennis Pinkston 
   Metro Police Authority of Genesee County 

One year term, expiring January 31, 2018 
 

Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 

Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 

City Council Packet 19 January 9, 2017



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 12/12/2016 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston in the Swartz 
Creek City Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   Hicks.   
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, City Clerk Connie Eskew, 

Treasure Deanna Korth, Director Public Service Tom 
Svrcek, Deputy Chief Rick Clolinger.  

    
Others Present: Bob Plumb, Lania Rocha, Jim Barclay, Steve Shumaker, 

Tommy Butler, Mike Stratton. 
 
EXCUSE COUNCILMEMBER HICKS 
 
 Resolution No. 161212-01       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Florence 
 
          I Move the Swartz Creek City council excuse councilmember Hicks.  
  

Unanimous Voice Vote. 
Motion Declared Carried. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
          Resolution No. 161212-02        (Carried) 
  
                      Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston 
                      Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting held Monday December 05, 2016 to be circulated and placed on 
file. 

 
YES:   Gilbert, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence. 

 NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

 
 

City Council Packet 20 January 9, 2017



 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution No. 161212-03       (Carried) 

 
Motion by Councilmember Gilbert  

  Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented for the 
Regular Council Meeting of December 12, 2016, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 

YES:  Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert. 
  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
  Resolution No. 161212-04       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Florence 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert   
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of 
December 12, 2016, including reports and communications to be circulated and 
placed on file.   
 

YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Bob Plumb resident at 37 Somerset, came as co chairman of the Swartz Creek Christmas 
parade and wanted to thank all councilmembers who participated as judges.  
 
Paul Fortino Clock Commemoration          Proclamation 
 
Mayor Krueger presented Mike Stratton, Paul’s grandson with the proclamation. Mr. 
Svrcek commented that Mike did a fabulous job with the installation of the clock and 
appreciated all the extra work he did. 
 
Juanita Aguilar Service Recognition        Proclamation 
 
Mayor Krueger presented to Rick Clolinger, Deputy Chief, in Juanita’s absence.  Deanna 
Korth Treasurer, spoke briefly of Juanita’s history at the city.  Mrs. Korth also gave a brief 
statement from Juanita.  
 
COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 
 

Resolution No. 161212-05       (Carried)
  

City Council Packet 21 January 9, 2017



  Motion by Councilmember Cramer 
  Second by Councilmember Florence 

 
WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Michigan, the Charter and Ordinances of the 
City of Swartz Creek, interlocal agreements in which the City of Swartz Creek is a 
member, and previous resolutions of the city council require and set terms of offices 
for various appointments to city boards and commissions, as well as appointments 
to non-city boards and commissions seeking representation by city officials; and 
 
WHEREAS, there exist vacancies in a number of said positions; and 
 
WHEREAS, said appointments are Mayoral appointments, subject to affirmation of 
the city council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council concur 
with the Mayor and City Council appointments as follows: 

 
  

#161212-5A1 MAYOR APPOINTMENT:   Trudy Plumb 
   Park Board, Citizen 
   Remainder of a three year term, expiring December 31, 2018 
 

 YES: Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Krueger. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
CDBG ALLOCATION 
 
Public Hearing 
 
Open: 7:25 p.m. 
 
Adam Zettel, City Manager commented that we’ve done this before, every time we get 
these community block grant funds on a three year cycle, about $30,000, we can spend 
them on certain things that federal guidelines allow.  In the past we had low to moderate 
areas in the city and we could spend community development block funds on public 
improvements in those areas. We don’t have qualifying areas anymore so it’s tough to 
spend. We are allowed to spend 15% on senior services and other 85% can go towards 
the Genesee County Home program, which we discussed and approved allocation for in 
October.  It can also go towards demolitions of blighted structures on city owned property, 
which in October we didn’t own any so it wasn’t an issue.  With the latest tax sale there is 
property on Morrish Road that the city is looking to be getting at the turn of the calendar 
year. This structure we been trying to get demolished over a year and so here are we have 
another qualifying expense. For the record the public is encouraged to speak about past 
projects, including streetscapes on Fortino Drive, Miller Road, Elms Road as well as the 
parking lot enhancements that were done on Morrish Road in 2014. Be it known also if we 
should somehow get a qualifying geography again, we could again spend money on 
streetscapes, parking improvements, as well as ADA accessibility improvements for 
sidewalks and things like that. As it happens now I recommend we put enough money into 
the demolition allotment to make sure we can get the structure down and the remainder of 
it stays in the Home Program which allows city homeowners only to have access to these 
funds to make improvements where there is some sort of financial need for that household.  

City Council Packet 22 January 9, 2017



Once demolition is done, should it be done using these funds, the county will allow a 
transfer of surplus funds back to this home program. This is a follow-up amendment to 
what was agreed to be put forth or proposed in October.  
 
Closed 7:28 p.m. 
 

Resolution No. 161212-06       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Porath  
  Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek City Council receives an allocation of 
Community Development Block Grant Funds from Genesee County on a three year 
cycle; and 
 
WHEREAS, such funds must be used in eligible low to moderate areas of the city 
for approved and eligible purposes or be a qualifying service such as senior 
services or the county-administered HOME Program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City has allocated the maximum of 15% to the Swartz Creek Area 
Senior Center and no longer has any qualifying geographies for qualifying physical 
improvements; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City is expected to receive title to a home in the community that 
requires demolition, which is another qualified expense of CDBG funds; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council held a public hearing on October 10, 
2016 & December 12, 2016 to hear public comment related to the use of such 
funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Swartz Creek City Council 
hereby allocates $12,000 of the city’s allocation to home demolitions and the 
remaining $16,819 to the HOME Program as administered by the staff of the 
Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission and further directs the City 
Manager to complete and submit the CDBG application in accordance with this 
allocation. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 

 YES: Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Krueger, Pinkston.  
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
STREET BONDING RESOLUTION OF INTENT 
 
 Resolution No. 161212-07                (Carried) 

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston 
  Second by Councilmember Cramer 

City Council Packet 23 January 9, 2017



WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek, County of Genesee, State of Michigan (the 
“City”) intends to issue general obligation limited tax bonds pursuant to Act 34, 
Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended (“Act 34”), in an aggregate principal 
amount of not to exceed One Million Nine Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($1,950,000) (the “Bonds”) for the purpose of paying all or part of the costs of 
certain capital improvements in the City, consisting of (i) road preservation and 
replacement including street milling, crack and pavement repair, concrete curb and 
gutter, ADA upgrades, sidewalk replacement, storm sewer replacement, aggregate 
base, asphalt paving, permanent signing and pavement markings; and (ii) 
watermain replacement including replacement of main, individual service leads, 
valves, and hydrants; including all related equipment, site improvements, 
appurtenances and attachments (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, a notice of intent to issue the Bonds must be published before the 
issuance of the Bonds in order to comply with the requirements of Section 517 of 
Act 34; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends at this time to state its intentions to be reimbursed from 
proceeds of the Bonds for any expenditures undertaken by the City for the Project 
prior to issuance of the Bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to publish a notice of intent to issue 
bonds in the Swartz Creek View, a newspaper of general circulation in the City.   

2. The notice of intent shall be published as a display advertisement not less 
than one-quarter (1/4) page in size in substantially the form attached to this 
resolution as Exhibit A. 
 
3. The City Council does hereby determine that the foregoing form of Notice of 
Intent to Issue Bonds and the manner of publication directed is the method best 
calculated to give notice to the City’s electors and taxpayers residing in the 
boundaries of the City of the City’s intent to issue the Bonds, the maximum amount 
of the Bonds, the purpose of the Bonds, the source of payment for the Bonds and 
the right of referendum relating thereto, and the newspaper named for publication is 
hereby determined to reach the largest number of persons to whom the notice is 
directed. 

4. The City makes the following declarations for the purpose of complying with 
the reimbursement rules of Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 pursuant to the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended: 

(a) The City reasonably expects to reimburse itself with proceeds 
of the Bonds for certain costs of the Project which were paid or will be 
paid from the general funds of the City subsequent to sixty (60) days 
prior to today.  

(b) The maximum principal amount of debt expected to be issued 
for the Project, including issuance costs, is $1,950,000. 

City Council Packet 24 January 9, 2017



(c) A reimbursement allocation of the capital expenditures 
described above with the proceeds of the Bonds will occur not later 
than 18 months after the later of (i) the date on which the expenditure 
is paid, or (ii) the date the Project is placed in service or abandoned, 
but in no event more than three (3) years after the original expenditure 
is paid.  A reimbursement allocation is an allocation in writing that 
evidences the City’s use of the proceeds of the Bonds to reimburse 
the City for a capital expenditure made pursuant to this resolution. 

5. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the 
provisions of this resolution be and the same hereby are rescinded. 

Discussion Ensued. 

 
  YES: Cramer, Florence, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath.  

NO: Gilbert.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
PARK RULES ADOPTION 
 
 Resolution No. 161212-08                         (Carried) 

 
Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Councilmember Cramer 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns, operates, and maintains public park 
and recreation facilities and desires to promote safe and equitable use of those 
facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city regulates use of city parks through the adoption of “Park Rules 
and Regulations” as enabled by City Ordinance Section 11-47, Park Rules and 
Regulations, which reads as follows: the City Council may by resolution adopt rules 
and regulations governing the use of parks, including prohibitions or restrictions on 
uses and acts within parks; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city park and recreation commission recommends amending of the 
attached Park Rules and Regulations to enable advanced reservations for 
expanded area use; and 
 
WHEREAS, a qualifying community organization has been approved to use certain 
features of Elms Park for the days of August 25-26, 2017, but the city council was 
not able to affirm a reservation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
approve the amended park rules as attached.                    
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the council hereby affirms the reservation for the 
Swartz Creek Kiwanis Club to coincide with their expanded use approval for August 
25-26, 2017.  

City Council Packet 25 January 9, 2017



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the council hereby directs staff to publish these rules 
and regulations in a newspaper of general circulation prior to the 2017 seasonal 
opening of the parks.  
 
Discussion Ensued.  
 

  YES: Florence, Gilbert, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer.  
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX A ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK TO REPEAL PROVISIONS AND REFERENCES TO 
MEDICAL MARIJUANA (MARIHUANA). 
 

Resolution No. 161212-09                         (Carried) 
 

  Motion by Councilmember Cramer 
  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek exercises police power to maintain and 
protect the health, safety, and welfare of the community; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek exercises said police power through zoning as 
it relates to the regulation of land uses; the establishment of standards for height, 
size, and bulk; and related performance standards; and   
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has found that changes to the state statutes 
regarding the regulation of land use as it pertains to medical marijuana (marihuana) 
necessitate the repeal of existing provisions related to the same. 
 
 
THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek ordain: 

 
CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 

ORDINANCE NO. 431 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND APPENDIX A ZONING OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK TO REPEAL PROVISIONS AND REFERENCES TO MEDICAL 
MARIJUANA (MARIHUANA). 

 
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
Section 1. Amendment of Appendix A, Section 2.07 of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Swartz Creek. 
 
Appendix A, Section 2.07 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek, Michigan, 

is hereby amended to rescind the following: 

Medical marijuana (marihuana) dispensary. A medical marijuana dispensary shall 
mean a facility, jointly owned or operated by two or more "primary caregivers," 
where marijuana is stored, dispensed or offered for sale to "qualifying patients" 

City Council Packet 26 January 9, 2017



under the Michigan Medical Marijuana Act of 2008. A "primary caregiver," 
"qualifying patient" and "marijuana" shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Michigan Medical Marijuana Act of 2008.  

Medical marijuana (marihuana) growing facility. A medical marijuana growing facility 
shall mean a facility, jointly owned or operated by two or more "primary caregivers," 
where marijuana is grown, cultivated, processed and/or packaged for "qualifying 
patients" but is not offered for direct or retail sale at this location to "qualifying 
patients" under the Michigan Medical Marijuana Act of 2008. A "primary caregiver," 
"qualifying patient" and "marijuana" shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the 
Michigan Medical Marijuana Act of 2008.  

Section 2. Amendment of Appendix A, Section 14.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Swartz Creek. 

 
Appendix A, Section 14.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek, 

Michigan, is hereby amended to rescind the following: 
 
R.1 Medical marijuana (marihuana) dispensary 
 

Section 3. Amendment of Appendix A, Section 17.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Swartz Creek. 

 
Appendix A, Section 17.02 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek, 

Michigan, is hereby amended to rescind the following: 
 
L.1 Medical marijuana (marihuana) growing facility 
 

Section 4. Amendment of Appendix A, Section 30.09 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Swartz Creek. 

 
Appendix A, Section 30.09 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek, 

Michigan, is hereby amended to rescind the following uses and their applicable 
regulations: 

 
23.1 Medical marijuana (marihuana) dispensary 
23.2 Medical marijuana (marihuana) growing facility 
 

Section 5. Repeal of Inconsistent ordinances. 
 
 Any other ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek which are in conflict with the provisions of 
this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
Section 6. Effective Date. 
 
 This ordinance shall be effective thirty days after publication. 
 
At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Swartz Creek held on December 12, 2016, 
adoption of the foregoing ordinance was moved by Councilmember Cramer and supported by 
Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston. 
 
 

City Council Packet 27 January 9, 2017



Voting for: Gilbert, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence. 
Voting against:  None.  
 
The Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 
 
      ______________________________ 
      David A. Krueger 
      Mayor 
 
  YES: Gilbert, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence.  

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

POLICE DEPARTMENT ANNUAL BICYCLE GIVE AWAY PROGRAM 
 

Resolution No. 161212-10             Carried)  
 

  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Cramer 

 
WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek Police Department conducts an annual Bike Give-
Away event & Shop with Hero event wherein school district administrators 
recommend local youngsters in need to participate in those programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, bicycles held by the police department this year have come from a 
variety of sources, including generous donations from the public, Meijer, and 
Assenmacher’s Cycling Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, eighteen such bicycles are used and Assenmacher’s Cycling Center 
has donated its services to repair and refurbish those bikes into like new condition; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Meijer agreed to donate $1,000 (fourteen bikes) worth of store credit 
toward the purchase of new bikes to supplement the used bikes; and 
 
WHEREAS, Wal-Mart agreed to donate helmets for the program; and 
 
WHEREAS, Meijer is also willing to provide $3,000 worth of store credit for the 
Shop with a Hero program. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I Move that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 2016 
Annual Police Department Bike Give Away Program, including the donation of 32 
bikes to area children, and further authorizes the acceptance of donations and 
subsequent distribution of approximately 32 new and used bicycles, with a 
comprehensive list to be established and reported back to the city council. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Swartz Creek approve the 2016 
Annual Shop with a Hero Program, and authorize the acceptance of donations, 
cash or credit, and subsequent distribution of said credit to area youth as 
recommended by local school and police department administrators. 

City Council Packet 28 January 9, 2017



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the city extend its greatest appreciation to all 
those who participated in this year’s Bike Give-Away Program and Shop With A 
Hero Program, including, but not limited to Assenmacher’s Cycling Center, Meijer, 
Wal-Mart, Little Caesar’s, the United Methodist Church, and Hungry Howie’s. 
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert.  
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC 
 
None.  
   
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston noted the bike giveaway is pretty remarkable. 
 
Councilmember Gilbert wanted to wish everyone Merry Christmas.  
 
Councilmember Florence commented the debris at the assisted living is no longer in sight, 
and Merry Christmas and Happy New Year to everyone.  
 
Councilmember Cramer had a fantastic time at the Christmas parade and thanked Mr. 
Plumb and all for organizing the parade and Merry Christmas to everyone.    
 
Councilmember Porath wished everyone Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.  He also 
wanted to apologize to Bob Plumb for not being able to judge at the Christmas Parade.  
 
Mayor Krueger commented about the Christmas parade and wished everyone a Merry 
Christmas and Happy New Year.  
 
Adjournment 
 
 Resolution No. 161212-11       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Florence 
 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council adjourn the regular meeting at 8:11 pm. 
 
  Unanimous Voice Vote. 
 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
Dennis Pinkston, Mayor Pro Tem   Connie Eskew, City Clerk   
    

City Council Packet 29 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 30 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 31 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 32 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 33 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 34 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 35 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 36 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 37 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 38 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 39 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 40 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 41 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 42 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 43 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 44 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 45 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 46 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 47 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 48 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 49 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 50 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 51 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 52 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 53 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 54 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 55 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 56 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 57 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 58 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 59 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 60 January 9, 2017



City of Swartz Creek   
Department of Police 

Chief RICK CLOLINGER 
8100-A Civic Drive 

Phone: (810)-635-4401                   Swartz Creek, Michigan  48473                     Fax: (810)-635-3728 

 
  

January 3, 2017 

 

FULL TIME 

BADE, MATTHEW     

ADKINS, ROBERT        

MCFADDEN, STEPHEN       

PAUL, NICK (Roscoe)        

RACOSTA, GREG       

STORMS, JEFF       

SZMANSKY, KEN     

 

PART TIME      

FARLIN, BRIAN     

MCKENZIE, SANDRA    

PIROCHTA, LARRY 

DUNKLEE, TYLER 

COMBS, SARAH 

 

    

         

 

City Council Packet 61 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 62 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 63 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 64 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 65 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 66 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 67 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 68 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 69 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 70 January 9, 2017



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING THE PAYMENT OF POST-
RETIREMENT BENEFITS BY THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY, THE CITY 

OF SWARTZ CREEK, AND THE METRO POLICE AUTHORITY OF GENESEE 
COUNTY FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY AND THE 
CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK THAT WERE TRANSFERRED TO THE METRO POLICE 

AUTHORITY OF GENESEE COUNTY 
 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) dated January 1, 2017 (“Agreement Date”) and effective 
on the Effective Date as defined herein is being entered into pursuant to the Michigan Constitution 
of 1963, Article 7, § 28, and the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, Act No. 7 of the Michigan Public 
Acts of 1967, Ex. Sess., being MCL § 124.501, et seq., and is made by and between the Charter 
Township of Mundy, a Michigan Charter Township, whose address is 3478 Mundy Avenue, 
Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473, the City of Swartz Creek, a Michigan Home Rule City, whose 
address is 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473, and the Metro Police Authority of 
Genesee County, whose address is 4029 West Grand Blanc Road, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473.  
The Charter Township of Mundy, the City of Swartz Creek, and the Metro Police Authority of 
Genesee County may sometimes herein be referred to as the Party if used in the singular or the 
Parties if referred to collectively.   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Mundy (“Township”) operated a police department 
to provide public safety to the residents and visitors to the Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek (“City”) operated a police department to provide 
public safety to the residents and visitors to the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township and City have established the Metro Police Authority of 
Genesee County (“Authority”), pursuant to the Michigan Constitution of 1963, Article 7, § 28, and 
the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, Act No. 7 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1967, Ex. Sess., 
being MCL § 124.501, et seq.; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all of the requirements for the Authority to become a legal entity have been 
satisfied; and 
 
 WHEREAS, during the establishment of the Authority, the City and Township each 
transferred employees and equipment to the Authority; and 
  

WHEREAS, in an effort to ensure fairness to the Township, City, and Authority, the 
parties hereto are executing this Agreement to establish the manner in which post-retirement 
medical benefits will be paid to the former City and Township employees which were transferred 
into the Authority; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the 
Township, City, and Authority agree as follows: 

City Council Packet 71 January 9, 2017



 
ARTICLE I 

ADOPTION OF RECITALS 
 
All of the matters stated in the Recitals of this Agreement are true and correct and are 

hereby incorporated into the body of this Agreement as though fully set forth in their entirety 
herein.  However, in cases of conflict, provisions of this Agreement shall prevail over the matters 
stated in the Recitals. 
 

ARTICLE II 
TERM AND TERMINATION 

 
 This Agreement shall continue until the employees transferred to the Authority by the City 
or the Township no longer qualify for post-retirement medical benefits or until the laws of the 
State of Michigan restrict or forbid the payment of post-retirement medical benefits.   
 

ARTICLE III 
POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PAYMENT 

 
The parties hereto have developed Exhibit A, Municipal Share of Post Employment 

Retirement Expenses Based Upon Years of Service chart, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  
Exhibit A sets forth the percentage that the Township and/or City (therein the "Municipality"), 
and/or the Authority shall pay, of the total annual cost of post-retirement health care benefits of 
the employees of the Authority based on the employees’ years of service with the Township, the 
City, and/or the Authority, subject to the following: 

 
1. Only Years of Service accrued at the Township and/or City prior to the date of this 

Agreement shall be included in this calculation.  
 
2. For the circumstance in which a retiree works partial years of service at both the 

Township and/or City, and the Authority, for which a full year of service credit toward retirement 
is accrued, the entity at which 6 months or greater of that year of service credit is accrued shall be 
responsible for that year of cost sharing as set forth on Exhibit A. 

 
3. The City percentage share as set forth by Exhibit A is further subject to the 

following conditions: 
 
 a. The total annual Post Employment Retirement Expenses shall not exceed 

100% of the premium calculated at the time of retirement for Medical and Hospitalization benefits 
due retirees pursuant to Section 6 of Article 22 of the agreement between the City and the Police 
Officers Labor Council dated April 30, 2012, (And Appendix A thereof), both attached hereto as 
Exhibit B.  Further, the City shall not be responsible for any expenses incurred for provision of 
any post employment retirement benefits for any retiree(s) 65 years of age or older, nor any post 
employment retirement benefits provided to retiree spouses who are eligible for Medicare benefits.  
Any cost increase of said benefits shall be borne exclusively by the retiree(s) or subsequent 

City Council Packet 72 January 9, 2017



agreement between retiree(s) and Authority.  Any cost increase due to an increase in benefit level 
or benefits granted to retirees due to subsequent agreement shall be borne exclusively by Authority.   

 
 b. In the event that retiree benefit levels and/or costs thereof are reduced to an 

amount equivalent to less than 100% of the premium costs calculated at the time of retirement of 
any retiree, for any reason, the City's payment thereof shall be the actual cost of the benefit subject 
to the cost sharing set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
 c. In the event that the retiree Medical and Hospitalization benefits plan as set 

forth in Appendix A of Exhibit B is no longer offered, the City shall propose a reasonably 
equivalent plan offered by the same provider to the Authority for purposes of the cost calculations 
set forth in this provision 3(a)-(c), for which the Authority shall not unreasonably withhold 
approval.   

 
4. The Township percentage share as set forth by Exhibit A is further subject to the 

following conditions: 
 
 a. The total annual Post Employment Retirement Expenses for each retiree 

under the age of 65 shall not exceed the cost of health care benefits provided by the Township to 
each active employee in any given calendar year, consistent with the benefits conferred by the 
parallel provisions both set forth at Article 20, Section 20.2 of the agreements between the 
Township and Mundy Township Police Officers / Mundy Township Command Officers, both 
dated April 2013 and collectively attached hereto as Exhibit C.  Any benefit cost above this level 
shall be borne exclusively by the retiree(s) or subsequent agreement between retiree(s) and 
Authority.  Any cost increase due to an increase in benefit level or benefits granted to retirees due 
to subsequent agreement shall be borne exclusively by the Authority. 

 
 b. The total annual Post Employment Retirement Expenses for each retiree 

over the age of 65 shall not exceed the cost of health care benefits established by Exhibit C for 
purposes of determining the Township's maximum cost sharing liability pursuant to the cost 
sharing set forth in Exhibit A.  Any benefit cost above this level shall be borne exclusively by the 
retiree or subsequent agreement between retiree(s) and Authority.  Any cost increase due to an 
increase in benefit level or benefits granted to retirees due to subsequent agreement shall be borne 
exclusively by the Authority. 

 
 c. The calculation of the total annual Post Employment Retirement Expenses 

for each retiree for which the Township is responsible shall be subject to the limitations set forth 
in Exhibit C, including but not limited to ineligibility for benefits due to eligibility for benefits 
under another health care plan. 

 
 d. In the event that retiree benefit levels and/or costs thereof are reduced to an 

amount less than the amount the Township would otherwise be responsible pursuant to Exhibit C 
for any retiree, for any reason, the Township's payment thereof shall be the actual cost of the 
benefit subject to the cost sharing set forth in Exhibit A. 

 

City Council Packet 73 January 9, 2017



ARTICLE IV 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 4.01.  Captions and Headings.  The captions, headings, and titles in this 

Agreement are for convenience and not intended to have any substantive meaning or be interpreted 
as part of this Agreement. 

 
Section 4.02. Plural Terms.  A term or phrase in this Agreement importing the singular 

number only may extend to and embrace the plural number and every term or phrase importing 
the plural number may be applied and limited to the singular number. 
 

Section 4.03. Due Execution of this Agreement.  Each Party shall duly execute not less 
than four (4) copies of this Agreement, each of which, taken together, is an original but all of which 
constitute one (1) instrument. 
 
 Section 4.04. Emergency Manager.  Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, 
if an emergency manager has been appointed under the local financial stability and choice act, Act 
436 of the Michigan Public Acts of 2012, as amended, being MCL § 141.1541 to 141.1575, with 
respect to the Authority, then the emergency manager may exercise the authority and 
responsibilities provided in this Agreement to the extent authorized by Act 436 of the Michigan 
Public Acts of 2012. 
 

Section 4.05. Addresses and Notice.  Unless otherwise provided herein and with the 
exception of invoices for payment and payments submitted, any notice, communication, request, 
reply or advice (herein severally and collectively, for convenience, called “Notice”) herein 
provided or permitted to be given, made or accepted by any Party to any other Party must be in 
writing and may be given or be served by depositing the same in the United States mail postage 
paid and registered or certified and addressed to the party to be notified, with return receipt 
requested, or by delivering the same to an officer of such Party, or by prepaid telegram when 
appropriate, addressed to the Party to be notified.  Notice deposited in the mail in the manner 
described above shall be conclusively deemed to be effective, unless otherwise stated herein, from 
and after the expiration of three (3) days after it is so deposited.  Notice given in any other manner 
shall be effective only if and when received by the Party to be notified.  For the purposes of notice, 
the addresses of the Parties shall, until changed as hereinafter provided, be as follows: 
 

If to Township, to: 
 
 Charter Township of Mundy 

Attn:  Township Clerk 
3478 Mundy Avenue 
Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 
 

 
 
If to City, to: 

City Council Packet 74 January 9, 2017



 
 City of Swartz Creek 

Attn:  City Clerk 
8083 Civic Drive 
Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 
 

  If to Authority, to: 
 
 Metro Police Authority of Genesee County 

Attn:  Chief of Police 
4029 West Grand Blanc Road 
Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

 
The Parties hereto shall have the right from time to time and at any time to change their respective 
addresses and each shall have the right to specify as its address any other address by at least fifteen 
(15) days written notice to the other Parties hereto. 
 
 Section 4.06. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement 
between the Parties and supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings between them 
in any way related to the subject matter of this Agreement.  It is further understood and agreed that 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement are contractual and are not mere recital and that there 
are no other agreements, understandings, contracts, or representations between the Parties in any 
way related to the subject matter of this Agreement, except as expressly stated in this Agreement. 
 

Section 4.07. Severability.  The Parties hereto specifically agree that in case any one or 
more of the sections, subsections, provisions, clauses or words of this Agreement or the application 
of such sections, subsections, provisions, clauses or words, to any situation or circumstance should 
be, or should be held to be, for any reason, invalid or unconstitutional, under the laws or 
constitutions of the State of Michigan or the United States of America, or in contravention of any 
such laws or constitutions, such invalidity, unconstitutionality or contravention shall not affect any 
other sections, subsections, provisions, clauses or words of this Agreement or the application of 
such sections, subsections, provisions, clauses or words to any other situation or circumstance, and 
it is intended that this Agreement shall be severable and shall be construed and applied as if any 
such invalid or unconstitutional section, subsection, provision, clause or word had not been 
included herein, and the rights and obligations of the Parties hereto shall be construed and remain 
in force accordingly. 

 
Section 4.08. Governing Law.  This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of 

Michigan and shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced, and governed under the laws of the 
State of Michigan without regard to the doctrine of conflict of laws.  The language of all parts of 
this Agreement shall in all cases be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning and not 
construed strictly for or against any party. 
 

Section 4.09. Jurisdiction and Venue.  In the event of any disputes between the Parties 
over the meaning, interpretation, or implementation of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this 

City Council Packet 75 January 9, 2017



Agreement, the matter under dispute, unless resolved between the Parties, shall be submitted to 
the courts of the State of Michigan. 

 
Section 4.10. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended, or an alternative form of 

this Agreement adopted, only upon written agreement of all Parties.  Any agreement or contract 
among the Parties that is inconsistent with this Agreement shall be adopted as an amendment to 
the Agreement and be approved as provided in Act No. 7 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1967 by 
the governing bodies of the Parties prior to becoming effective.   

 
Section 4.11. Construction.  This Agreement has been prepared and negotiations have 

occurred in connection with said preparation pursuant to the joint efforts of the Parties hereto.  This 
Agreement therefore shall not be construed against any Party to this Agreement. 

 
Section 4.12. Assignability and Successor Interest.  This Agreement may be assigned 

or the rights herein may otherwise be transferred from the Township or City to a duly formed 
successor agency or entity, or to the State of Michigan, provided that no obligations of the 
Authority set forth in this Agreement shall be affected by any such assignment or transfer.  If either 
Party desires to make such transfer or assignment, they shall first provide thirty (30) days written 
notice to the other Parties to provide the opportunity for comments. 

 
Section 4.13. Effective Date.  This Agreement is effective on January 1, 2017. 
 
 
 

    CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY 
 
 
 
 
Dated:     By:         
     David Guigear 
     Supervisor 
 

  Address: 3478 Mundy Avenue 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 

 
 

     
     
  

City Council Packet 76 January 9, 2017



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
 
 
 
 
Dated:     By:         
     David Krueger 
     Mayor 
 

  Address: 8083 Civic Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 

 
 
 

METRO POLICE AUTHORITY OF GENESEE COUNTY 
 
 
 
 
Dated:     By:           
        
     Chairperson 
 

  Address: 4029 West Grand Blanc Road 
Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

 
This Agreement was prepared by 
Kevin Kilby (P68599) 
McGraw Morris P.C. 
2075 W. Big Beaver Road 
Suite 750 
Troy, Michigan 48084 
(810) 569-0352 
kkilby@mcgrawmorris.com 
 
 

City Council Packet 77 January 9, 2017

mailto:kkilby@mcgrawmorris.com


City Council Packet 78 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 79 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 80 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 81 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 82 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 83 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 84 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 85 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 86 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 87 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 88 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 89 January 9, 2017



Mundy Township City of Swartz Creek

Police Department Police Department

2017 2017 Combined Total

   

Liason‐CA $ 75,000                       $ ‐                                   $ 75,000                 

Charges for Services ‐                                  75,000                         75,000                 

Parking Fees ‐                                  4,600                           4,600                    

Ordinance Fines 34,000                       6,500                           40,500                 

PA 302 Training‐LEORTC 3,000                          1,800                           4,800                    

Total Revenue $ 112,000                     $ 87,900                         $ 199,900             

Wages $ 1,156,915                  $ 519,730                      $ 1,676,644          

Overtime 70,000                       35,000                         105,000             

Payroll Taxes 93,859                       42,437                         136,296             

Health Insurance 176,787                     82,136                         258,922             

Retiree Health Insurance 70,000                       30,000                         100,000             

Vision Insurance 3,506                          687                              4,193                    

Life Insurance 1,644                          1,900                           3,544                    

Sick/Accident Insurance 10,223                       7,241                           17,464                 

Dental Insurance 20,888                       9,571                           30,459                 

Retirement Expense 214,185                     90,581                         304,765             

Workers' Compensation 35,442                       15,190                         50,632                 

LEORTC Training 3,000                          1,800                           4,800                    

Supplies 7,000                          6,150                           13,150                   

Postage 1,000                          ‐                                   1,000                    

Fuel 35,000                       21,000                         56,000                   

Uniforms 17,500                       7,500                           25,000                 

Professional Fees/Contractual 95,500                       54,500                         150,000             

P.D. Community Policing 1,000                          ‐                                   1,000                    

Training 5,000                          4,170                           9,170                      

Travel 500                             ‐                                   500                       

Printing 5,000                          100                              5,100                    

Utilities 22,766                       19,500                         42,266                 

Telephone 8,400                          7,450                           15,850                 

Repairs and Maintenance 16,280                       11,000                         27,280                   

Equipment Repair and Maintenance 3,500                          ‐                                   3,500                    

Grounds 5,000                          ‐                                   5,000                    

Vehicle Expense 20,000                       16,000                         36,000                   

Building Lease 36,600                       10,500                         47,100                 

Misc Expense 1,000                          400                              1,400                    

Tech/Email 50,910                       22,513                         73,423                 

Dues and Subscriptions 23,164                       8,351                           31,515                 

Insurance 74,509                       29,790                         104,299             

Equipment 53,200                       22,800                         76,000                 

Total Expenditures $ 2,339,277                  $ 1,077,995                   $ 3,417,272          

Net Budgeted Expenditures

     Over Revenues $ (2,227,277)                   $ (990,095)                     $ (3,217,372)         

City Council Packet 90 January 9, 2017



 
 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY LEASE 
 
This lease (the Lease) is entered into on _______________________, between The 
City of Swartz Creek, a Michigan municipality, whose principle office is located at 8083 
Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (Lessor), and the Genesee Metro Police 
Authority, whose address is 5420 Hill 23 Drive, Flint, Michigan 48507 (Lessee), on the 
following terms and conditions. 
 

1. Premises. Lessor leases to Lessee 4,250 square feet of the building and 
Premises at 8100 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 (the Building), as 
outlined in Exhibit A.  
 
2. Term. The term of this Lease shall be ten (10) years, and shall continue each ten 
(10) year period thereafter, unless terminated in writing. 
 
3. Rent. 
 

a. Base rent. Lessee shall pay Lessor, as maintenance expense for the 
Premises, Twenty-One Thousand Two Hundred Forty Dollars ($21,240.00) per 
year, or One Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy Dollars ($1,770.00) per month, 
commencing on the Commencement Date. Rent payments shall be made to 
Lessor at its address shown above or any other place designated in writing by 
Lessor. 
 
b. Additional rent. Lessee shall pay all taxes and insurance premiums for the 
building, insuring the interest of the Lessor. Lessee agrees to be responsible for 
the payment of all of the utility services for the Premises, including the prorated 
share of water and sewer, gas, electricity, snow removal, lawn maintenance, and 
other services delivered to the Premises. Services contracted for by Lessee shall 
be paid for by Lessee immediately on presentation of the invoice so that no past 
due accounts arise.  
 

4. Security deposit. Lessee shall pay no security deposit. 
 
5. Signs. Lessee shall not construct, place, or paint any sign or awning or other 
improvement or apparatus on the exterior of the Building without the prior consent of 
Lessor, which will not be unreasonably withheld. Any signs placed in the windows of 
the Premises shall be in keeping with the character and decor of the Building as a 
whole.  That in no event shall any sign be placed in violation of any law, ordinance or 
regulation. 
 
6. Acceptance of occupancy. Lessee shall commence occupancy of the Premises 
on the Commencement Date and begin payment of rent as called for by this Lease. 
Lessee has inspected the Premises and common areas, finds them in good order 
and repair, acceptable for Lessee’s intended use of the Premises, and accepts the 
Premises and common areas as is. 
 

City Council Packet 91 January 9, 2017



 
7. Option to renew. Lessee shall have an option to renew this Lease on the 
expiration of the initial term of the Lease for two (2) additional terms of ten (10) years 
each, which shall be automatic unless terminated in writing, 90 days before the 
Lease term expires. The renewal shall be on the same terms and conditions as 
stated in this Lease. 
 
8. Vacation of Premises. Lessee shall not vacate or abandon the Premises at any 
time during the term of this Lease, and if Lessee abandons or vacates the Premises 
or is dispossessed by process of law or otherwise, any personal property belonging 
to Lessee left on the Premises shall be deemed abandoned, at the option of Lessor. 
Lessor may also take possession of any personal property left by Lessee on the 
Premises and charge Lessee a monthly fee for the storage of that personal property. 
Any fee charged by Lessor for this purpose shall be deemed to be additional rent 
under this Lease and payable immediately. 
 
9. Use. The Premises are to be used and occupied by Lessee for the operation of all 
legal purposes, specifically including the operation of a police authority and related 
activities. No activity shall be permitted on the Premises that does not comply with 
local, state, and federal laws, ordinances, or regulations. 
 
10. Expenses. Lessee shall pay all costs and expenses incurred in operating and 
managing the Building. 
 
11. Landlord’s lien. Lessee grants a lien to Lessor on all Lessee’s property on the 
Premises to secure the performance of Lessee’s obligations under this Lease. 
Lessee also agrees to sign any financing statements Lessor requests to perfect this 
lien. 
 
12. Repairs and maintenance. Lessor shall be responsible for the exterior of the 
Building in which the Premises are situated, including walls, roof, subsurface walls, 
and floor, structural maintenance, repair, and replacement, and for the replacement 
of the furnace and hot water heater. Lessee shall be obligated to clean and maintain 
the Premises at Lessee’s expense, including interior painting. The Lessee shall 
ensure the Premises shall be kept in good and safe condition, including the 
windows, the electrical fixtures, the plumbing fixtures, and any other system or 
equipment within the Premises. Lessor shall maintain in good condition the sidewalk, 
driveway, and parking areas adjacent to the Premises, shall regularly sweep those 
areas and pick up any trash or debris in the area, and during the winter months shall 
keep the sidewalk adjacent to the Premises clear of snow and ice.  
 
13. Surrender of Premises. Lessee shall surrender the Premises to Lessor at the 
expiration of this Lease broom clean and in the same condition as at the 
Commencement Date, excepting normal wear and tear. 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 92 January 9, 2017



 
14. Entry and inspection. Lessee shall permit Lessor or Lessor’s agents to enter 
on the Premises at reasonable times and on reasonable notice for the purpose of 
inspection and repair of the Premises, shall permit Lessor at any time within 90 days 
before the expiration of the Lease to place on the Premises standard “for lease” 
signs, and permit persons desiring to lease the Premises to inspect the Premises 
during that period. 
 
15. Taxes and assessments. Lessee shall pay all real and personal property taxes 
and assessments levied and made against the Premises. All taxes levied on the 
personal property owned or leased by Lessee shall be the sole responsibility of 
Lessee.  Lessor takes no responsibility for taxes being levied and the obligation to 
pay taxes.  Any such obligation shall be solely that of the Lessee. 
 
16. Alterations. Lessee may remodel and make improvements to the premises.  
The work shall be done without injury to any structural portion of the Building and 
without disturbing other tenants in their use of the Building. Any improvements 
constructed pursuant to this paragraph shall become the property of Lessor on the 
termination of this Lease. 
 
17. Assignment and subletting. Lessee may not assign, sublet, or otherwise 
transfer or convey its interest, or any portion of its interest, in the Premises to any 
entity not affiliated with Lessee without the prior written consent of Lessor. Lessor 
shall have total discretion regarding its approval of proposed assignments or 
subleases. 
 
18. Trade fixtures. All trade fixtures and moveable equipment installed by Lessee in 
connection with the business conducted by it on the Premises shall remain the 
property of Lessee and shall be removed by it at the expiration of this Lease. Lessee 
shall repair any damage caused by such removal and restore the Premises to their 
original condition. 
 
19. Insurance. Lessee shall, at its expense, insure the Building against loss or 
damage under a policy or policies of fire and extended coverage insurance, 
including additional perils. Lessee shall obtain and maintain in full force general 
liability and property damage insurance, with both Lessee and Lessor as named 
insured parties, covering any and all claims for injuries to persons occurring in, on, 
or about the Premises, in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) and issued by a company approved by Lessor. The insurance shall 
also contain a waiver of subrogation clause exempting Lessor from any liability for 
any insured loss. Lessee shall deliver to Lessor customary insurance certifications 
evidencing that the insurance is in effect at all times during the term of the Lease. 
The policy must further provide for notice by the insurance company to Lessor of any 
termination or cancellation of the policy at least 30 days in advance of that event. 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 93 January 9, 2017



 
20. Lessee’s liability. All Lessee’s personal property, including trade fixtures, on the 
Premises shall be kept at Lessee’s sole risk. Lessor shall not be responsible or liable 
to Lessee for any loss of business or other loss or damage that may be occasioned 
by or through the acts or omissions of persons occupying adjoining premises or any 
part of the premises adjacent to or connected with the leased Premises or any part 
of the Building of which the leased Premises are a part or for any loss or damage 
resulting to Lessee or its business or property from water, gas, sewer, or steam 
pipes that burst, overflow, stop, or leak; from heating, cooling, or plumbing fixtures; 
or from electric wires or gas odors within the leased Premises from any cause, 
except as may result from and be directly caused by the gross negligence or 
recklessness of Lessor. The provisions of this section shall not be interpreted to 
prevent Lessee from recovering any losses under the coverage provided by Lessor’s 
fire and extended coverage insurance policy, if any losses of Lessee are covered by 
that policy. 
 
21. Destruction of Premises. If the Premises are partially damaged or destroyed 
through no fault of Lessee, Lessor shall, at its own expense, promptly repair and 
restore the Premises, upon the receipt of the insurance funds referenced above. 
Rent shall abate in whole or in part during the period of restoration according to the 
amount of destruction if the destruction was not caused by Lessee. If the Premises 
are totally destroyed through no fault of Lessee or if the Premises cannot be 
repaired and restored within 90 days after the event of destruction, either party shall 
have the right to terminate this Lease, effective as of the date of the event, by giving 
the other party written notice of termination within 10 calendar days after the 
occurrence of the event. If the notice is given within that time period, this Lease shall 
terminate, and rent shall be adjusted between the parties to the date of the 
occurrence of the event. If the notice is not given within the required period, this 
Lease shall continue and Lessor shall repair the Premises. 
 
22. Mutual releases. Lessor and Lessee, and all parties claiming under them, 
mutually release and discharge each other from all claims and liabilities arising from 
or caused by any hazards covered by insurance on the leased Premises or covered 
by insurance in connection with property on or activities conducted on the Premises 
regardless of the cause of the damage or loss. Lessor and Lessee shall each cause 
appropriate clauses to be included in their respective insurance policies covering the 
Premises waiving subrogation against the other party consistent with the mutual 
release in this paragraph. 
 
23. Condemnation. If the Premises or any part of them are taken for any public or 
quasipublic purpose pursuant to any power of eminent domain, or by private sale in 
lieu of eminent domain, this Lease shall terminate at the option of either Lessor or 
Lessee, effective as of the date the public authority takes possession. All damages 
for the condemnation of the Premises or Building that is awarded for the taking shall 
be payable to and be the sole property of Lessor. 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 94 January 9, 2017



24. Indemnity. Lessee agrees to indemnify and defend Lessor against and hold 
Lessor harmless from any liability, loss, damage, cost, or expense (including 
attorney fees) based on any claim, demand, suit, or action by any person or entity 
with respect to any personal injury (including death) or property damages, from any 
cause regarding Lessee’s use of the Premises, except for liability resulting from the 
intentional acts or gross negligence of Lessor or its employees, agents, invitees, or 
business visitors and except for liability resulting from the acts or negligence of 
persons occupying adjoining property. 
 
25. Default and reentry. If Lessee neglects or fails to perform its obligation to pay 
rent when due; if Lessee neglects or fails to perform any other covenants in this 
Lease to be observed and performed on its part for 10 days after written notice by 
Lessor of the default; if Lessee makes any assignment for the benefit of creditors or 
a receiver is appointed for Lessee or its property; or if any proceedings are instituted 
by or against Lessee in bankruptcy (including reorganization) or under any 
insolvency laws, Lessor may reenter the Premises and seek to relet the Premises on 
any terms that Lessor, in its sole discretion, deems advisable. In the alternative, 
Lessor may terminate the Lease and seek to relet the Premises on any terms that 
Lessor, in its sole discretion, deems advisable. Notwithstanding any termination of 
the Lease by Lessor or reentry by Lessor without a termination, Lessee shall 
continue to be liable to Lessor for rent owed under this Lease, any rent deficiency 
that results from a reletting of the Premises during the term of this Lease, and the 
cost of reletting the Premises. 
 
Notwithstanding any reletting without termination, Lessor may at any time elect to 
terminate this Lease for any default by Lessee by giving written notice of the 
termination to Lessee. 
 
In addition to Lessor’s other rights and remedies as set forth in this Lease and 
without waiving any of those rights, if Lessor deems any repairs necessary that 
Lessee is required to make or if Lessee is in default in the performance of any of its 
obligations under this Lease, Lessor may, on failure of Lessee to meet the 
obligation, make or cause repairs to be made and defaults to be cured and shall not 
be responsible to Lessee for any loss or damage that occurs by reason of that 
action, and Lessee agrees that it will immediately on demand pay Lessor’s 
reasonable costs for curing as additional rent under this Lease. 
 
26. Subordination. This Lease and Lessee’s rights shall at all times be subordinate 
to the lien of any mortgage now or later placed on the land and Building of which the 
Premises are a part, and Lessee agrees to provide any mortgagee with a customary 
tenant’s estoppel letter at the request of any mortgagee with respect to the status of 
this Lease or any collateral assignment of this Lease or the rents under it that Lessor 
may make to any mortgagee as additional security for the indebtedness secured by 
the mortgage. If Lessee is requested to sign any subordination agreement on behalf 
of Lessor’s mortgagee, Lessee agrees to sign a reasonable and customary 
subordination agreement that includes language providing that Lessee’s interest and 
rights under this Lease will not be disturbed as long as Lessee is not in default under 
the Lease. Lessee agrees not to look to any mortgagee, as mortgagee in possession 
or successor in title to the Premises, for accountability for any security deposit 

City Council Packet 95 January 9, 2017



required by Lessor or any successor lessor unless the sum has actually been 
received by the mortgagee as security for Lessee’s performance of this Lease. 
Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to indicate that Lessee is under any 
obligation regarding a security deposit or that Lessor holds any security deposit, and 
this section shall apply only if a security deposit is actually given to Lessor. If a 
mortgagee required that proceeds of casualty insurance or condemnation be applied 
to reduce the mortgage debt rather than to restore damaged or taken property, this 
Lease shall terminate, and neither party shall have any further obligation to the 
other. 
 
27. Notices. Any notice required under this Lease shall be in writing and sent by 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses of the parties 
set forth in this Lease or to another address that a party substitutes by written notice; 
and notice shall be effective as of the date of first attempted delivery. 
 
28. Lessee’s possession and enjoyment. Lessee, on the payment of the rent at 
the time and in the manner stated above and on performance of all the foregoing 
covenants, shall and may peacefully and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Premises 
for the term of this Lease. 
 
29. Holding over. If Lessee does not vacate the Premises at the end of the term 
specified in this Lease, such holding over shall constitute a month-to-month tenancy 
at 150 percent of the then existing rental rate. 
 
30. Entire agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties 
regarding its subject matter, and this Agreement may not be amended or modified 
except by a written instrument executed by the parties to this Lease. 
 
31. Waiver. The failure of Lessor to enforce any covenant or condition of this Lease 
shall not be deemed a waiver of its right to enforce each and every covenant and 
condition of this Lease. No provision of this Lease shall be deemed to have been 
waived unless the waiver is in writing. 
 
32. Lessor’s fees and expenses. Any fees, costs, or expenses incurred by a 
prevailing party enforcing the other party’s obligations under this Lease, including 
reasonable attorney fees, shall be due and payable immediately under the Lease. 
 
33. Binding effect. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of 
the parties to this Lease and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 
 
34. Time of the essence. Time shall be deemed to be of the essence in the 
performance of this Lease. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Packet 96 January 9, 2017



35. Effective date. This Lease shall be effective as of the date first stated above. 
 
 
 

LESSEE 
GENESEE METRO POLICE AUTHORITY 
 
 
 

 LESSOR 
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK  
 

By: /s/__________________________ 
_______________________________ 
Its: ____________________________ 

 By: /s/__________________________ 
Adam Zettel, City Manager 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 97 January 9, 2017



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

City Council Packet 98 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 99 January 9, 2017

azettel
Polygonal Line

azettel
Text Box
CommonArea

azettel
Text Box
Metro Police Authority

azettel
Polygonal Line

azettel
Polygonal Line

azettel
Text Box
Swartz Creek Area Fire Board

azettel
Polygon

azettel
Polygon

azettel
Polygon

azettel
Polygon

azettel
Text Box
Metro Police AuthorityParking/Access

azettel
Text Box
Metro Police AuthorityParking/Access

azettel
Text Box
Swartz Creek Area Fire BoardParking/Access

azettel
Text Box
Swartz Creek Area Fire BoardParking/Access

azettel
Polygonal Line

azettel
Text Box
Common UtilitiesLimited Access



8 December 2016

Mr. Tom Svrcek 
Director of Public Services
8083 Civic Drive
Swartz Creek, MI 48473

Dear Mr. Svrcek:

Thank you for requesting a water leak detection survey bid 
proposal from Aqua-Line, Inc.  This proposal is good through 
2018.  We will go the extra mile to provide you with superior 
leak detection services 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

We understand other leak detection companies are in the area 
trying to provide leak detection surveys.  Aqua-Line has a 
proven track record of comprehensive surveys, and provides the 
best possible survey and emergency leak detection services in 
the area.  Here’s how we do it:

 (1) Proven comprehensive survey methods:  Our comprehensive 
survey includes listening to all valves, fire hydrants and 
selected service connections to ensure the most complete 
coverage of your water distribution system.  Others only 
survey fire hydrants, and/or use “loggers” and don’t get 
complete coverage.  There surveys sometimes cost less and you 
get less!! 

 (2) Superior Equipment: We use the best surveying and 
pinpointing equipment available today.  Fluid Conservation 
Systems equipment is regarded as the best industry wide.

 (3) Fully Trained/Experienced Technicians: All our personnel 
are Factory Trained and Field Certified.  This process can 
take up to two years, and provides you with the best possible 
survey experience.

 (4) 24/7 Emergency Response Capability:  We have four fully      
equipped vans to respond to your emergency leak detection 
needs.

City Council Packet 100 January 9, 2017



 (5) Customer Satisfaction: Our customer satisfaction on
comprehensive surveys and emergency leak detection is 
unsurpassed.

As discussed, a fire hydrant survey of your distribution 
system would take two days to complete and cost $2,542.00.  
This would entail listening to all fire hydrants, then 
pinpointing any leak noises heard.  We will provide a daily 
report, and a hand written final report.  This type of survey 
will find most major leaks, but is not as thorough as a full 
survey.

I would like to thank you for considering Aqua-Line for your 
leak detection survey.  I would be glad to further discuss our 
services at your convenience.

Sincerely,

Stephen C. Smith

City Council Packet 101 January 9, 2017



PROPOSAL FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
LEAK DETECTION SURVEY 

FOR  
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN

8 DECEMBER 2016

PREPARED FOR:
TOM SVRCEK, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

PREPARED BY:
AQUA-LINE LEAK DETECTION SERVICES

P.O. BOX 1612
FINDLAY, OHIO 45839

This information is “PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL”, is the 
exclusive property of Aqua-Line Leak Detection Services and 
shall not be copied or disseminated without its prior written 
consent.  Aqua-Line assumes no responsibility or liability for 
the reliance hereon or use hereof by anyone other this the party 
to who it is addressed.  This proposal is valid until 1 December 
2018.

City Council Packet 102 January 9, 2017



TABLE OF CONTENTS

                                                             Page
1.0 INTRODUCTION.............................................. 1

2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY AQUA-LINE................... 2

3.0 CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES................................. 3

4.0 PROJECT PRICE, BILLING AND PAYMENT TERMS.................. 4

5.0 AQUA-LINE REFERENCES...................................... 5

6.0 PERSONNEL AND COMPANY EXPERIENCE.......................... 6

7.0 BUSINESS ORGANIZATION..................................... 7

City Council Packet 103 January 9, 2017



1.0 INTRODUCTION

Thank you for the opportunity to present a proposal for leak 
detection services for your municipality.  Aqua-Line uses state-
of-the-art technology for un-intrusively detecting and 
pinpointing water leaks in pressurized water distribution 
systems.  Successfully locating leaks using our system can 
result in significant monetary savings through reduced operating 
costs, increased labor productivity, while improving overall 
water distribution system operations.  

Aqua-Line uses the Fluid Conservation Systems (FCS) AC Digital, 
and TriCorr Touch Leak Correlation Systems, the most advanced 
portable microprocessor systems on the market for pinpointing 
water leaks.  Moreover, we use the new FCS S30 surveyor which 
provides superior leak detection performance on all types of 
pipe during the initial phase of the leak detection survey.

Aqua-Line has a strong track record of customer satisfaction.  
Our proven surveying methods, superior equipment, experienced 
and fully qualified technicians and competitive rates provide 
you with the best possible leak detection survey available 
today.

City Council Packet 104 January 9, 2017



3.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY AQUA-LINE

Aqua-Line will perform a leak detection survey of the water 
distribution system for Swartz Creek, Michigan.  The following 
tasks are included:

- Prior to mobilization, we will review existing water
  distribution system maps, street maps, any applicable water 
  system reports, storage and pumping records.
  
- We will conduct a leak detection and location survey using
  sonic detection and computer correlation equipment on
  approximately 32 miles of the water distribution system.  We
  will make contact with the system at all exposed valves, fire
  hydrants and selected service connections as required.
  Contact with service connections is critical on sections of
  your plastic pipe.  Following an initial sonic leak survey of
  the system, any evidence of leaks will be confirmed with a
  second survey.  At this stage, all leaks will be pinpointed
  with a computer correlation system.  Valves and hydrants do
  not typically require operation during surveying and leak
  pinpointing, but may be required on a limited basis.  We
  request your authorized representative conduct these valve or
  hydrant operations if required.

- The survey will be conducted during normal working hours,
  Monday through Friday, with the exception of leak detection 
  performed during evening/early morning hours in high traffic
  areas.  We expect to complete the survey in 3-4 days.

- We will provide a daily report on the progress of the survey
  including water distribution system discrepancies noted.  We
  will also provide diagrams to show the location of all leaks
  correlated.

- Aqua-Line will provide a final report (2 copies) describing
  the results of the survey.  The report will include a summary
  of the project and will list all leakage correlated according
  to location, type, and estimated loss rate.  Based upon the 
  results of our survey, the report will also provided 
  recommendations for controlling future water loss.

City Council Packet 105 January 9, 2017



3.0 CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

Prior to mobilization by Aqua-Line, we request Swartz Creek 
provide the following information/assistance upon which Aqua-
Line may rely without further independent verification:

- All available street maps, water storage and flow records,
  water distribution system maps, available plans for existing
  facilities, and any other pertinent information as needed.

- An experienced person possessing knowledge of the water
  distribution system, to assist full-time with field activities
  such as location of system components.

- Access to valves, curb stops, and meter boxes by uncovering
  and cleaning valves and curb boxes where required prior to
  starting field operations.

We respectfully request Swartz Creek agree to hold harmless and 
indemnify Aqua-Line against any liability arising out of the 
items in Section 3.0 above, for which Swartz Creek is 
responsible.

Additionally, Aqua-Line requests Swartz Creek designate an 
authorized representative to transmit instructions, receive 
information, interpret and define the cities policies and make 
decisions with respect to the services provided.

City Council Packet 106 January 9, 2017



4.0 PROJECT PRICE, BILLING AND PAYMENT TERMS

Aqua-Line’s lump sum rate for providing the services described 
in Section 2.0 is $4,528.00.        

The above pricing is subject to renegotiation if authorization 
to proceed is not received by 1 December 2018.

Aqua-Line will bill this project monthly, with net payment due 
in 30 days.  Past due invoices will be subject to a service 
charge at a rate of 1.5 percent per month.  Unless provided with 
a written statement of any objections to a bill within 15 days 
of receipt, Aqua-Line will deem the bill to be acceptable to 
Client as submitted.

  

City Council Packet 107 January 9, 2017



5.0 AQUA-LINE REFERENCES

                     SURVEY
  CITY           MILES          CONTACT            PHONE

1. MONROE, MI         300+        KEVIN ARMSTRONG   734-384-9151

2. DUNDEE, MI          56         BOB HURLEY        734-777-3292

3. PORT AUSTIN, MI     10         NEIL HARDER       989-738-8366

4.  GROSSE ILE, MI      65         JON KEIM          734-676-5959

5. MACKINAC ISLAND, MI 12         ALLEN BURT        906-847-6060

6. ROCKWOOD, MI        15         ADAM GRABETZ      734-379-6869

7. GRAYLING, MI        19         CHAD BECKETT      989-348-2131

8. HILLSDALE, MI       54         NATE RUSK         517-437-6418

9.  FRANKENMUTH, MI     75         KEN O’BRIEN       989-652-8987
  
10.NORTHVILLE, MI      35         STEVE HEIDT       248-755-0307

City Council Packet 108 January 9, 2017



6.0 PERSONNEL AND COMPANY EXPERIENCE

The following Aqua-Line personnel may be involved with the 
survey of Swartz Creek:

Stephen C. Smith:  President, Aqua-Line, Inc
                   Twenty-one  years experience in all aspects
                   of the leak detection business; factory
                   trained/certified by Fluid Conservation 
                   Systems; Twenty-one  years field experience
                   conducting surveys, emergency leak detection
                   and line location services.
                   Previous: 23 years United States Navy;
                   Surface Warfare Officer; engineering
                   speciality.

Roger H. Darnall:  Vice President, Aqua-Line, Inc
                   Twenty-one years experience in all aspects of
                   the leak detection business; factory trained/
                   certified by Fluid Conservation Systems;
                   Twenty-one years field experience conducting
                   surveys, emergency leak detection and line
                   location services.
                   Previous: 20 years Small Business Owner,
                   Blacktop Maintenance; Project Manager for
                   Environmental Clean-up firm (2 years).

Les Chilcote:      Leak Detection Technician
                   Sixteen years experience conducting leak
                   detection surveys; Certified surveyor;
                   factory trained/certified by Fluid
                   Conservation Systems; sixteen  years
                   experience pinpointing.
                   
Tim Barker:        Leak Detection Technician
                   Five years experience conducting leak
                   detection surveys; Certified surveyor;
                   factory trained/certified by Fluid
                   Conservation Systems; five years experience
                   pinpointing.                      
                    

Aqua-Line has conducted over 650 leak detection surveys during 
the past twenty-one years.  Survey size had ranged from 5 miles 
to 200 miles of water main.  

City Council Packet 109 January 9, 2017



7.0 BUSINESS ORGANIZATION

COMPANY NAME:     AQUA-LINE, INC
ADDRESS:          P.O. BOX 1612
                  FINDLAY, OHIO 45839

TYPE OF COMPANY:  S-CORPORATION, OHIO

TAX ID:           341844942

TELEPHONE #:      1-888-GET LEAK
                       (438-5325)

FAX #:            1-419-424-0510

WEB PAGE:         www.aqua-line-inc.com

AUTHORIZED NEGOTIATORS:  STEPHEN C. SMITH; PHONE (419)-408-5153
                         ROGER H. DARNALL; PHONE (419)-408-5152   

City Council Packet 110 January 9, 2017



John Wisely , Detroit Free Press 12:24 a.m. EST December 11, 2016

The cost of the housing bust isn't just measured in lost homes and property value.

Michigan communities cut nearly 3,000 police officers as falling property tax revenues stretched budgets. Fire
protection and library service took a hit. As did municipal ice rinks, swimming pools and recreation centers.
Spending on local roadwork was curtailed, too, leaving potholes and damaged vehicles as proof.

It might take a generation or more to build up property values in a community that pays for first-rate police and
fire protection and other special extras, like a community pools and leaf collection. But a year or so of a
hard-core housing crash and recession can wipe it all away. And the devastation can last years after property
values build back up again because of how the state tax rules work.

As home values in Michigan rebound — even exceeding pre-recession levels in some areas — tax revenues are starting to come back some. But under
the Michigan Constitution, they can't rise faster than the inflation rate, except when new development is added to the tax rolls. That means most local
governments are years away from getting back to 2007 revenue levels.

That might be music to the ears of tax-averse property owners, but it feels like a long slog for local governments trying to restore police protection or
fill potholes.

"Everybody talks about how it will be 20 years before we get back to where we were," said Bill Anderson, an analyst for the Southeast Michigan Council
of Governments (http://semcog.org/). "But in that meantime, there is 20 years of inflation. We never get back."

Every local government, municipal and county, saw its tax collections fall because of the housing crash and Great Recession. In Wayne County, annual
property tax collections fell by $186 million between 2006 and last year. In Oakland County, they fell $38.5 million and in Macomb $13 million, according
to audit reports submitted to the state.

► Nancy Kaffer: Why would Snyder seek $430M cut in Michigan school aid? (/story/opinion/columnists/nancy-kaffer/2016/12/08/michigan-school-
funding/95144852/)

The number of sworn police officers in Michigan has fallen from more than 21,000 in 2006 to about 18,400 now, according to the Michigan Commission
on Law Enforcement Standards (http://www.michigan.gov/documents/mcoles/LEOPop_10-31-16_540430_7.pdf), the state agency that licenses police
officers. Communities feel those cuts in different ways.

Most sheriff's deputies in Wayne County work in its three jails, dealing with some of the state's most violent offenders. Their ranks have fallen from more
than 1,000 before the recession to fewer than 800 now, said Brian Earle, president of the Wayne County Deputy Sheriff's Association.

"My guys are being mandated to work excessive amounts of overtime," Earle said. "If you're scheduled to work 40 hours a week, you're working at least
56."

Fred Timpner, executive director of the Michigan Association of Police, said cities have cut wages and benefits so much that it's difficult to attract and
retain good officers.

"They are going to make this a job, not a career," Timpner said. "The state is being heavily recruited by departments out of the state.They are taking our
talent."

► Flint water crisis: Woes could sink Flint's property values even more (/story/news/local/michigan/flint-water-crisis/2016/02/07/flint-property-values
/79823532/)

For local governments looking to cut costs, the downturn meant a lot of soul searching.

(Photo: Kathleen Galligan, Detroit

Free Press)

Buy Photo

Property tax laws: Why cities' services haven't recovered from housing bust http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/2016/12/10/housing-bu...

1 of 3 12/14/2016 8:38 AM

City Council Packet 111 January 9, 2017



Tech pioneer Pete Karmanos Jr.
recently announced that he'd be
moving three startup companies
that are part of his MadDog
Technology to the historic Riker
Building in Pontiac. (Photo: Eric

"When things started getting very tight, it came down to, what do we have to provide?" said Beth Bialy of Plante Moran (http://www.plantemoran.com
/pages/default.aspx), which audits more than 400 local governments. "Public safety was at the top and public works was right up there, too. But
everything else was on the table."

Bialy said the things cut most often in recent years were "nice-to-have" things such as ice rinks, golf courses and fireworks displays on the Fourth of July.
But necessary services also have been hit. Bialy said a typical municipal budget is 75% to 80% personnel cost, so meaningful cuts mean small
headcounts.

"We're down almost 2,000 employees," said Wayne County Executive Warren Evans. "We haven't stopped providing service, but in certain areas,
services are being curtailed. We're certainly going to have far fewer deputies, far fewer prosecutors."

This year, Wayne County collected about $120 million less in property taxes than it did in 2006. For the employees who remain, things have been tough
as well.

The county adopted a high-deductible health care plan and eliminated health coverage for retirees, who now receive a small stipend to buy insurance
themselves. The county reduced the way employees accrue pension credits and required employees to pay more into the pension system.

Even when the county is in a position to hire, it's difficult to find qualified people to take the jobs, officials say.

Deputies start at $29,000 a year. Snowplow drivers are paid $15 an hour.

"We're trying to gear up for snow removal and we're having trouble getting people with a commercial driver's license because of the rate we pay,"
Evans said.

► Related: Downtown Detroit sales prices rise to 'insane' levels (/story/money/real-estate/home-sales/2016/04/23/detroit-downtown-midtown-
condominiums-m1-rail-arena/83191622/)

Pontiac has struggled for years since General Motors closed factories and other facilities there, but it's decline was hastened by the housing crunch.The
city budget has fallen from about $58 million in 2006 to about $30 million this year. Over that period, property tax collections, the main source of revenue
for the general fund, fell by almost half, from $19.1 million to about $9.9 million last year.

"We used to have about 800 employees," said Mayor Deirdre Waterman. "Now we have 32 in City Hall and another 36 supporting the court."

Pontiac's emergency manager relinquished most control to the mayor and City Council in March, after seven years in charge. A state-appointed transition
board still monitors the city as elected officials operate it. Pontiac eliminated its police and fire departments, outsourcing those services to the Oakland
County Sheriff's Office and the Waterford Fire Department, respectively.

"All of our recreation centers were sold off by the emergency manager," Waterman said. "The Silverdome was sold off. Even our water treatment plant
was sold. We had to find a way to provide services with half the revenue."

Waterman said the budget is stable now and the city's downtown is enjoying a revival with people and businesses moving in. Last month, voters
approved a new tax to open some recreation centers for young people. The city is still trying identify where it will house the new programs, but it's a sign
of progress, she said.

"I'm proud that after an eight-year hiatus, we're able to do this," she said.

► Related: SE Michigan home prices keep rising, back to '07 levels (/story/money/business/michigan/2016/01
/09/michigan-home-prices-keep-rising/78019058/)

For years, Westland residents raked their leaves into the street, where a city vacuum truck came by to suck
them up, but budget cuts forced the city to eliminate that service, said Mayor Bill Wild.

"That was a process that was over half-million dollars a year." Wild said.

The city closed its recreation center, which was costing more than $1 million a year, and partnered with
neighboring Wayne to use that city's facility. Wayne closed its ice rink and Westland's arena picked up the
hockey and figure-skating programs. The two cities now share a fire chief and a public works director.

Buy Photo

Property tax laws: Why cities' services haven't recovered from housing bust http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/2016/12/10/housing-bu...

2 of 3 12/14/2016 8:38 AM

City Council Packet 112 January 9, 2017



Seals, Detroit Free Press) "We've had to be creative," Wild said. "We've had to cross-train all our employees."

Libraries across the state have had to tighten their belts, too, often reducing hours or closing some days of the week, said Gail Madzier, executive
director of the Michigan Library Association. Libraries receive about 98% of their revenue from local sources, typically property taxes, she said.

"Libraries are struggling like every other business trying to keep adequate staffing," Madzier said.

Many libraries have replaced full-time degreed librarians with part-timers, Madzier said.

When Dearborn's budget grew tight in 2010, Mayor Jack O'Reilly proposed closing six small, city-owned pools located in neighborhoods across the city.

Many residents were outraged at the idea. Danielle Misovich, a high school junior who worked as a lifeguard at one of the pools, formed a Facebook
group, Save Dearborn's Small Pools (https://www.facebook.com/groups/saveourpools/), to protest the move. The group was able to forestall the closures,
but the city eventually closed three of the pools. The city replaced two of them with splash pads and plans to do the same with the third.

"From the city administration, it's been 'let it die a slow death,'" said Ryan Woods, who has been active in the group. "Talking to people in the
neighborhoods, they want to keep it. It's an asset."

Successes

Eastpointe and Roseville saved their parks and recreation services by forming an authority in 2011 and passing a 1-mill property tax in both cities to pay
for it. The Recreation Authority of Eastpointe and Roseville (http://recreationalauthority.com/) launched Jan 1, 2012, and now provides youth sports,
crafts, fitness and other activities for residents of both groups.

"Residents, elected officials and municipal leaders understand now more than ever the value of parks and recreation," said Ann Conklin of the Michigan
Recreation and Parks Association. "People want to live in places with a high quality of life, protect the natural resources, are walkable and provide
affordable and accessible public spaces."

In Oakland County, property tax collections last year were about $186 million, down from the $225 million the county received in 2007. The county was
able to manage through the downturn by starting early, said Deputy Oakland County Executive Robert Daddow. Because the county handles assessing
duties for most of its communities, officials were able to monitor, almost in real-time, the sales prices of property.

Daddow said that when the downward trend was spotted in 2005, the county began hiring freezes, retirement incentives and other cost-cutting measures
to get ahead of the problem. It eliminated about 300 positions through attrition and retirements.

"There are little things that we've done at the edges," Daddow said.

Nurses who were county employees were replaced with those provided by a private company on a contract basis. The county also privatized the bump
shop that repaired county vehicles. It also bid out its prescription drug benefit and added higher co-pays and deductibles.

"There wasn't any wholesale cuts in service," Daddow said. "There were no layoffs. You didn't see picketing."

Contact John Wisely: 313-222-6825 or jwisely@freepress.com. On Twitter @jwisely.

Read or Share this story: http://on.freep.com/2hbDZP6

Property tax laws: Why cities' services haven't recovered from housing bust http://www.freep.com/story/news/local/michigan/2016/12/10/housing-bu...

3 of 3 12/14/2016 8:38 AM

City Council Packet 113 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 114 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 115 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 116 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 117 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 118 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 119 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 120 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 121 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 122 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 123 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 124 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 125 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 126 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 127 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 128 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 129 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 130 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 131 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 132 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 133 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 134 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 135 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 136 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 137 January 9, 2017



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 01/03/17

InspectorCompleted Result

Matt Hart12/01/2016 12/01/2016 No Change4169 JENNIE LN Status58-36-526-024

Matt Hart12/01/2016 12/01/2016 No Change7556 MILLER RD Status58-36-552-009

Matt Hart12/01/2016 12/01/2016 Disapproved4276 KROGER DR Progress58-36-400-010

Bob Davis12/06/2016 12/06/2016 Approved7233 LINDSEY DR Final58-36-676-042

Bob Davis12/06/2016 12/06/2016 Approved7233 LINDSEY DR Final58-36-676-042

Matt Hart12/06/2016 12/06/2016 Partially Approved4276 KROGER DR Progress58-36-400-010

Bob Davis12/06/2016 12/06/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Rough-Partial Progress58-36-400-010

Tara Ford12/07/2016 12/07/2016 No Change4169 JENNIE LN Letter58-36-526-024

Matt Hart12/12/2016 11/29/2016 Complied3266 DYE RD Status58-29-300-002

Matt Hart12/12/2016 12/12/2016 Approved7084 MILLER RD Final Zoning-Admin58-36-576-012

Matt Hart12/12/2016 12/12/2016 Approved6337 BRISTOL RD Final58-31-100-038

Leon Buning12/13/2016 12/13/2016 Approved8339 CAPPY LN Final58-02-100-008

Matt Hart12/13/2016 12/13/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Progress58-36-400-010

Matt Hart12/13/2016 12/13/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Rough58-36-400-010

Leon Buning12/14/2016 12/14/2016 Approved7233 LINDSEY DR Final58-36-676-042

Leon Buning12/14/2016 12/14/2016 Approved7169 RUSSELL DR Final58-36-676-064

Matt Hart12/14/2016 12/14/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Insulation58-36-400-010

Matt Hart12/14/2016 12/19/2016 Approved7233 LINDSEY DR Masonary58-36-676-042

Matt Hart12/14/2016 12/14/2016 Partially Complied8341 CAPPY LN Initial58-02-503-040

Leon Buning12/15/2016 12/15/2016 Approved7240 MILLER RD Final58-36-578-007

Bob Davis12/15/2016 12/15/2016 Approved7240 MILLER RD Final58-36-578-007

Leon Buning12/15/2016 12/15/2016 Approved7096 YARMY DR Final58-36-526-041

Bob Davis12/15/2016 12/15/2016 Approved7096 YARMY DR Final58-36-526-041

Matt Hart12/15/2016 12/15/2016 Disapproved7233 LINDSEY DR Final58-36-676-042

Matt Hart12/15/2016 12/19/2016 Approved7169 RUSSELL DR Masonary58-36-676-064

Jeremy Pizzala12/19/2016 12/19/2016 No Change5388 DURWOOD DR Status58-03-533-114

Jeremy Pizzala12/19/2016 12/19/2016 No Change5256 DON SHENK DR Status58-02-503-004City Council Packet 138 January 9, 2017



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List 01/03/17

InspectorCompleted Result

Jeremy Pizzala12/19/2016 12/19/2016 No Change5014 FORD ST Status58-02-528-012

Matt Hart12/19/2016 12/19/2016 No Change4169 JENNIE LN Status58-36-526-024

Bob Davis12/19/2016 12/19/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Rough58-36-400-010

Matt Hart12/19/2016 12/19/2016 Approved7233 LINDSEY DR Final-Reinspection58-36-676-042

Bob Davis12/19/2016 12/19/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Rough58-36-400-010

Leon Buning12/20/2016 12/20/2016 Approved9148 CHELMSFORD DR Service58-03-528-030

Bob Davis12/20/2016 12/20/2016 Approved7169 RUSSELL DR Final58-36-676-064

Bob Davis12/20/2016 12/21/2016 Approved7169 RUSSELL DR Final58-36-676-064

Bob Davis12/20/2016 12/20/2016 Approved5915 CROSSCREEK DR Final58-36-651-205

Leon Buning12/21/2016 12/21/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Rough58-36-400-010

Matt Hart12/21/2016 12/21/2016 Approved9187 NORBURY DR Open Roof58-03-533-197

Matt Hart12/28/20167556 MILLER RD Status58-36-552-009

Bob Davis12/29/2016 12/29/2016 Approved4276 KROGER DR Rough58-36-400-010

All RecordsPopulation:Inspections: 40

Inspection.DateTimeScheduled  Between  12/1/2016 12:00:00 AM AND 12/31/2016 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 139 January 9, 2017



City of Swartz Creek01/03/17

Building Permit List
2016

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

Building

PB1600058 12/02/16 (248) 581 3030 58-03-580-009 $19,046 $195.00 5372 WINSHALL DR 48473-1108Roofing 0Hanson's Window & Construction Inc

PB1600059 12/06/16 (810) 235 9866 58-03-533-197 $7,070 $125.00 9187 NORBURY DR 48473-1148Roofing 0Lockhart Roofing Co.

PB1600060 12/07/16 (810) 653 7663 58-03-533-086 $8,640 $140.00 5233 GREENLEAF DR 48473-1133Roofing 0Goods Roofing, Inc

Total: 3 Permits Value: $34,756 Fee Total: $460.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Electrical

PE1600054 12/06/16 (810) 223 1043 58-03-528-030 $0 $120.00 9148 CHELMSFORD DR48473-1118Electrical 0Cornerstone Electric Inc

PE1600055 12/08/16 (810) 742 8652 58-35-576-059 $0 $135.00 8083 CIVIC DR 48473 Electrical 0Ecker Mechanical Cont Inc

Total: 2 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $255.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Mechanical

PM160062 12/05/16 (810) 695 9300 58-36-651-205 $0 $130.00 5915 CROSSCREEK DR48473-1713Mechanical 0Adkisson & Sons Htg & Clg Inc

PM160063 12/05/16 (810) 742 8530 58-36-651-104 $0 $135.00 4393 SPRINGBROOK DR48473-1477Mechanical 0Goyette Mechanical

PM160064 12/14/16 (810) 736 3830 58-02-526-013 $0 $175.00 5091 SCHOOL ST 48473-1263Mechanical 0P & H Plumbing & Heating, Inc.

PM160065 12/28/16 58-31-526-004 $0 $160.00 6166 MILLER RD 48473-1517Mechanical 0William Lalonde

PM160066 12/28/16 (810) 232 8270 58-29-300-013 $0 $160.00 5285 MILLER RD 48473-1508Mechanical 0Terry Allen Heating & Plumbing Co

Total: 5 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $760.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Right of Way
City Council Packet 140 January 9, 2017



City of Swartz Creek01/03/17

Building Permit List
2016

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

PROW-0037 12/07/16 (248) 228 8263 58-29-300-007 $0 $500.00 6060 BRISTOL RD 48554-0002Right of way 0123NET

Total: 1 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $500.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Zoning

PZ16-0026 12/09/16 (810) 230 6445 58-03-400-014 $0 $170.00 5372 SEYMOUR RD 48473 Sign 0Sign A Rama

Total: 1 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $170.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Fee Total:Permit Total: 12 Value: $2,145.00$34,756

Permit.DateIssued  Between  12/1/2016
12:00:00 AM AND 12/31/2016 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 141 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 142 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 143 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 144 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 145 January 9, 2017



01/04/2017                                    CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                              
                                                        CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016                                              

Highlighted amount is total for that vendor
Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank GEN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT

12/01/2016 42954 A+ SUPPLY CO INC LIGHTS (8) 94.34
LIGHTS (13)/RETURN LIGHTS (4) 70.19

164.53

12/01/2016 42955 ACE-SAGINAW PAVING COMPANY COLD PATCH 814.20

12/01/2016 42956 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 104.00
MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 104.00
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 118.70
MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72

392.14

12/01/2016 42957 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY COST SHARING AGRMNT/POLICE/MCGRAW MORRIS 830.25
12/01/2016 42958 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY EML/COST SHARING/POLICE/R KNOTT 1,846.87
12/01/2016 42959 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY JOINT INSP & PERMIT FEES SEPT 2016 3,525.92
12/01/2016 42960 COMCAST BUSINESS 11/26-12/25/16 CITY HALL 329.60
12/01/2016 42961 COMCAST BUSINESS 12/1-12/31/16 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 149.80

12/01/2016 42962 COOKS DIESEL RV & TRUCK REPAIR BATTERY FOR STREET SWEEPER 141.95
BATTERY FOR BUCKET TRUCK 128.95

270.90

12/01/2016 42963 DENNIS W CRAMER MILEAGE FOR MML SEMINAR/LANSING 48.60

12/01/2016 42964 DONALD KORTH UPDATED WORKSTATIONS/SERVER/MAIL 300.00
RE-IMAGE LAPTOP FOR CRAMER 150.00
TROUBLESHOOT & UPDATE LAPTOP PORATH 100.00

550.00

12/01/2016 42965 GAULT DAVISON PC OCT 2016 ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUE 1,215.00
12/01/2016 42966 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER WATER 9/28-10/28/16 2,206,570 CF 127,523.95
12/01/2016 42967 GREGORY R CRUTHERS ANNUAL MAINT 11/3/16-11/3/17 300.00
12/01/2016 42968 JAMES NOLEN CE CAPPY LANE LIFT STATION APPLICATION # 170,244.00
12/01/2016 42969 JOSE A MIRELES MOW & TRIM CITY PROP/RESIDENT (4) 1,055.00
12/01/2016 42970 MICH ASSOC MUNICIPAL CLERKS CLERK ANNUAL MEMB DUES 60.00
12/01/2016 42971 MICHIGAN ASSESSORS ASSOCIATION MAA MEMBERSHIP DUES 2017 ZETTEL 75.00
12/01/2016 42972 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE ELECTED OFFICIALS TRAINING CRAMER 2/17-2 160.00
12/01/2016 42973 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE CDL DRIVERS FEE (5) 1/1-12/31/17 350.00
12/01/2016 42974 MISS DIG SYSTEM INC ANNUAL MEMB & FEES 2017 695.46
12/01/2016 42975 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC FY16 AUDIT FINAL BILL 7,500.00
12/01/2016 42976 PPSMG URGENT MEDICAL CARE PLLC HEP B SHOT/R. STEVENS 30.00
12/01/2016 42977 SALLY M ADAMS JULY-DEC 2016 RETIREE MEDICAL 1,506.00
12/01/2016 42978 SOUNDCOM MICHIGAN CORP REPAIR AUDIO SYSTEM 316.40

12/01/2016 42979 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY OIL FILTER (2)/ANTIFREEZE (6)/5W30 OIL 103.80
LIGHT BULBS FOR TRUCK/HYD HOSE 105.72

209.52

12/01/2016 42980 THOMAS SVRCEK X-MAS DECORATIONS REIMB 27.95
X-MAS DECORATONS REIMB 71.91
X-MAS DECORATIONS REIMB 127.84
X-MAS DECORATIONS REIMB 116.86

344.56

12/08/2016 42981 ADS PLUS PRINTING LLC NAMEPLATE/ D. CRAMER 16.00

12/08/2016 42982 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.59City Council Packet 146 January 9, 2017



135.31

12/08/2016 42983 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK REIMB PETTY CASH 120.14
12/08/2016 42984 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-11/30/16 STREET LIGHTS 8,277.06
12/08/2016 42985 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-11/30/16 4524 MORRISH RD 40.19
12/08/2016 42986 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-11/30/16 SIRENS 25.59
12/08/2016 42987 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-11/30/16 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 384.76
12/08/2016 42988 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-11/30/16 ELMS PARKING LOT 26.81
12/08/2016 42989 DOT FIRST AID AND SAFETY REPLENISH FIRST AID DPS 62.93

12/08/2016 42990 FAMILY FARM AND HOME INC NUTS/BOLTS/WASHERS 7.89
UNIV CLEVIS PINS (2) 3.10
HEX DRILL PNT (7) 3.00
RED PAINT 2 GAL 43.98
RAGS/FAST ORANGE PUMICE 23.98
SCREW EYE (3) 5.37
RTN NUTS BOLTS WASHERS/NUTS BOLTS WASHER (0.39)
RETURN RED PAINT (43.98)

42.95

12/08/2016 42991 FLINT WELDING SUPPLY FAX/CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00
12/08/2016 42992 GEN CTY METROPOLITAN ALLIANCE DUES 1/1-12/31/17 150.00

12/08/2016 42993 GILL ROYS HARDWARE AV BATTERY/CHRM AERATOR/SOAP (3) 14.85
15 PK YARD WASTE BAG (2 PK) 15.98
PVC COUPLING (2) 11.18
FOAM EARPLUGS 19.99
GALV NIPPLE 3.59
PAINT (12)/BRUSH SET (6)/ROLLER (2)/FRAM 472.57
RED PAINT 1 GAL/LINE MARKING COVERS (2) 33.97
SOAP (4) 6.16
NUTS, BOLTS, SCREWS/SOCKET 7.01
BULBS (3) 21.97
100 PC CABLE TIE (2) 17.98
100 PC CABLE TIE (12) 17.98
CLEAR LIGHT SET 14.99
GALV DESK SCREW 1 BOX 12.99
32 OZ FANTASTIK 7.58
SOAP (6)/GREEN CUBE TAP (2) 14.52
GALV COUPLING/GALV NIPPLE 13.98
NOVEMBER 2016 DISCOUNT/RETURN 6.59
RETURN BRUSH SET/ROLLER/PAINT (2) (68.96)
NOV 2016 DISCOUNT (67.61)

577.31

12/08/2016 42994 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS EML/KITCHEN TOWELS (2) 73.98
12/08/2016 42995 JAMS MEDIA LLC BACKHOE BIDS/PLAN COMM PUB HEARING 12/6/ 84.60

12/08/2016 42996 JOHNS TRUCK SERVICE REPLACE SHOCKS & GROUND WIRE/JUMPER CABL 475.32
STEEL/FABRICATE RACKS 347.00
REPAIR TAILGATE SHIELD 52.00

874.32

12/08/2016 42997 KCI WINTER 2016 TAX BILLS 448.44
12/08/2016 42998 LANDMARK APPRAISAL CO DEC 2016/FY17 ASSESSING SERVICES OCTOBER 2,466.25
12/08/2016 42999 MATTHEW R WADDILL TIRE REPAIR 10.00
12/08/2016 43000 NATIONALLINK LP REFUND TAX OVRPMT 58-31-200-014 24.94
12/08/2016 43001 PRINTING SYSTEMS 2016 W2/1099-MISC/W3/1096 98.08
12/08/2016 43002 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN NOV 2016/FY17 GARBAGE/RECYCLING/YARD WAS 21,472.00
12/08/2016 43003 Sign A Rama BD Payment Refund 250.00
12/08/2016 43004 SIMEN FIGURA & PARKER PLC NOV 2016 GEN'L/TRAFFIC/ORDIN 2,341.50
12/08/2016 43005 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY BATT PROTECTOR 7.99
12/08/2016 43006 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 11/1-11/30/16 FUEL USAGE - DPW 770.27
12/08/2016 43007 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 11/1-11/30/16 FUEL USAGE - POLICE 1,236.95
12/08/2016 43008 SWARTZ CREEK AREA FIRE DEPT. 1/1-6/30/17 2017 FIRE BUDGET & MONTHLY R 53,329.75
12/08/2016 43009 VERIZON WIRELESS NOV 2016 MONTHLY INVOICES 424.51
12/15/2016 43010 AMERICAN MESSAGING DEC 2016 8108332563/8108331159 26.04City Council Packet 147 January 9, 2017



12/15/2016 43011 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 102.59

135.31

12/15/2016 43012 BLACKMORE ROWE INS PUBLIC OFFICIAL BOND/KORTH 100.00

12/15/2016 43013 BLUE CARE NETWORK-EAST MI JAN 2017 RETIREE MED INS KELLY 744.58
JAN 2017 RETIREE MED INS O'BRIEN 1,319.16
JAN 2017 RETIREE MED INS CLOLINGER 1,348.51
JAN 2017 COBRA INS BUECHE 575.74
JAN 2017 RETIREE MED INS TYLER 724.66

4,712.65

12/15/2016 43014 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-12/5/16 A 8301 CAPPY LN 244.59
12/15/2016 43015 CONSUMERS ENERGY 10/31-12/5/16 A 5121 MORRISH RD 810.85
12/15/2016 43016 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-12/5/16 A 4510 MORRISH RD 36.82
12/15/2016 43017 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-12/5/16 A 8011 MILLER RD 28.43
12/15/2016 43018 CONSUMERS ENERGY 10/31-12/5/16 A 8100 CIVIC DR 1,307.80
12/15/2016 43019 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-12/5/16 A 9099 MILLER RD 34.26
12/15/2016 43020 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-12/5/16 A 5361 WINSHALL DR 25.04
12/15/2016 43021 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-12/5/16 A 5257 WINSHALL DR 22.57
12/15/2016 43022 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/1-12/5/16 A WINSHALL RESTROOMS 28.43
12/15/2016 43023 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/3-12/7/16 A 6425 MILLER PARK&RIDE 88.75
12/15/2016 43024 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/3-12/7/16 A 4125 ELMS RD 33.76
12/15/2016 43025 CONSUMERS ENERGY 11/3-12/7/16 A 4125 ELMS RD PAVILION 26.98
12/15/2016 43026 CONSUMERS ENERGY 10/26-12/2/16 A 8499 MILLER RD 23.22
12/15/2016 43027 CONSUMERS ENERGY 10/31-12/5/16 A 8059 FORTINO DR 74.58
12/15/2016 43028 DANIEL L RHANOR REPLACE BALLAST IN MUNICIPAL BLDG 110.00
12/15/2016 43029 DELTA DENTAL PLAN JAN 2017 DENTAL RETIREES(5)/COBRA(1) 351.65
12/15/2016 43030 DONALD KORTH UPDATE COUNCIL LAPTOPS 300.00
12/15/2016 43031 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC SIGNS & POSTS 3,124.25

12/15/2016 43032 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386 WATER METER PARTS 889.68
SLD PLUG/BLUE BLT & GSKT PK 135.65

1,025.33

12/15/2016 43033 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED DEC 2016 VISION (5)/RETIREES (1) 30.06
12/15/2016 43034 GAULT DAVISON PC NOV 2016 ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUE 2,242.96
12/15/2016 43035 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER NPDES PHASE II IMPL FEES 1,234.92

12/15/2016 43036 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS OFFICE SUPPLIES 86.60
MONTHLY PLANNER 17.99
GARBAGE BAGS (2)/KITCHEN ROLL TOWELS (2) 284.86

389.45

12/15/2016 43037 JERRY'S TIRE EML/TIRES (4)/MT & BAL 691.00
12/15/2016 43038 KENNEDY EXCAVATING INC PAVEMENT MARKINGS FAIRCHILD TO SCHOOL 1,200.00
12/15/2016 43039 LERETA LLC REFUND PRE DBOR 58-01-502-090 450.39
12/15/2016 43040 MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE ELECT OFFCL CORE TRAIN 2/17-2/18/17 FLOR 320.00
12/15/2016 43041 MID MICHIGAN MANUFACTURING JETTED AND CLEANED/MILLER RD 1,190.00
12/15/2016 43042 MONICA MASON REFUND SU OVERPAYMENT DBOR 58-02-526-013 843.32
12/15/2016 43043 MY-CAN LLC PORTAJON RENTAL 11/14-12/12/16 ELMS PARK 95.00
12/15/2016 43044 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO CE CAPPY LANE LIFT STATION 2,615.00
12/15/2016 43045 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO DE WINSTON/FAIRCHILD 10/16-11/19/16 130.00
12/15/2016 43046 RWS OF MID MICHIGAN STREET SWEEPINGS 11/4 & 11/29/16 1,050.00

12/15/2016 43047 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY OIL FILTER/OIL (12)/BLASTER/OIL STABILIZ 70.84
WIPER BLADES (8) 93.92
STARTING FLUID 3.49

168.25

12/15/2016 43048 SWARTZ CREEK AREA FIRE DEPT. NOV 2016 MONTHLY RUNS 2,120.82
12/15/2016 43049 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE JAN 2017 RETIREE LIFE INS (3) 29.25
12/22/2016 43050 AIS CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT CORP SAFETY JACKET 49.00
12/22/2016 43051 ALDERMANS INC SHEAR PIN/HITCH PIN 5.52
City Council Packet 148 January 9, 2017



12/22/2016 43052 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 107.34

140.06

12/22/2016 43053 C & H CONSTRUCTION CO INC CPY/WATERMAIN TIE MILLER/WINSTON 14,632.50

12/22/2016 43054 CAPITAL TIRE (4) P225/60R18 EAGLE SNOW TIRES 511.56
(2) P225/60R18 EAGLE SNOW TIRES 255.78

767.34

12/22/2016 43055 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MUNDY JOINT INSP & PERMIT FEES OCT 2016 4,928.59
12/22/2016 43056 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK REIMB PETTY CASH 162.58
12/22/2016 43057 COOKS DIESEL RV & TRUCK REPAIR BATTERY 266.90

12/22/2016 43058 CREEK AUTO SERVICES LLC REPLACE HEADLIGHT 12-144 37.87
MONTHLY MAINT, MOUNT SNOW TIRES 13-384 115.95
MONTHLY MAINT, MOUNT SNOW TIRES 12-144 115.95
MONTHLY MAINT, BRAKES, SNOW TIRES 10-161 301.85
MONTHLY MAINT, SNOW TIRES 115.95
POWER STEERING, BY PASS 05-168 82.00
OIL PRESSURE SENSOR, BUSHINGS 12-144 535.02

1,304.59

12/22/2016 43059 DAVID R PUMMILL UB BILLS (5000) 294.44

12/22/2016 43060 DETROIT SALT COMPANY ROAD SALT AT $59.33 PER TON 3,175.34
ROAD SALT AT $59.33 PER TON 2,917.26
ROAD SALT AT $59.33 PER TON 3,197.29

9,289.89

12/22/2016 43061 DOUGLAS F SHERMAN PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 960.00
12/22/2016 43062 FLINT AREA NARCOTICS GROUP FANG MEMBERSHIP DUES 2016/2017 7,850.60
12/22/2016 43063 GCGC MEMBERSHIP DUES/ESKEW 20.00
12/22/2016 43064 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER WATER 10/28-11/30/16 2,358,268 CF 135,973.53
12/22/2016 43065 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER ADDITIONAL PLAN REVIEW FEE 25.00
12/22/2016 43066 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS SUPPLIES 160.18
12/22/2016 43067 JERRY'S TIRE PUT TUBES BACK IN TIRE 390.00
12/22/2016 43068 KENDALL PRINTING 150 BUSINESS CARDS 25.00
12/22/2016 43069 MI MUNICIPAL WORKERS COMP FUND PAYROLL AUDIT 7/1/15-6/30/16 648.00
12/22/2016 43070 NYE UNIFORM (2) UNIFORM PANTS DUNKLER 185.17

12/22/2016 43071 PPSMG URGENT MEDICAL CARE PLLC DRUG SCREEN/NEW HIRE SARAH COMBS 30.00
PHYSICAL/NEW HIRE SARAH COMBS 50.00

80.00

12/22/2016 43072 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY WARREN AW32 39.99
RELAY 12.09

52.08

12/22/2016 43073 SW CREEK AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE MEMB DUES 2017-2018 159.00
12/22/2016 43074 TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE INVESTIGATIVE 25.00
12/22/2016 43075 VILLAGE CLEANERS NOV 2016 UNIFORM CLEANING 84.75
12/28/2016 43076 COMCAST BUSINESS 1/1/17-1/31/17 PUBLIC SAFETY BLDG 149.80
12/28/2016 43077 COMCAST BUSINESS 12/26/16-1/26/17 CITY HALL 329.60
12/28/2016 43078 GENESEE COUNTY TREASURER PRE DENIAL 2016 INT 58-02-553-007 4.01
12/28/2016 43079 STATE OF MICHIGAN-DEPART. TREA PRE DENIAL INT 2016 58-02-553-007 28.05
12/28/2016 43080 U. S. POST OFFICE JAN 2017 UB BILLS- POSTAGE 675.24

GEN TOTALS:
Total of 127 Checks: 621,423.48
Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00
Total of 127 Disbursements: 621,423.48

City Council Packet 149 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 150 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 151 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 152 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 153 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 154 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 155 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 156 January 9, 2017



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

PARK AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

January 4, 2017 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Rae Lynn Hicks at the Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building. 
 
Members Present: James Barclay, Ryan Bueche, Larry Cummings, Connie Eskew, Rae Lynn Hicks, Joe 
Perreault, & Trudy Plumb 
 
Members Absent: Rick Henry, Dennis Reno 
 
Staff Present: Adam Zettel  
 
Others Present: Lania Roche 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: There were no changes to the agenda. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Motion by Cummings, to approve minutes of December 7, 2016, supported by 

Perreault. Motion carried. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: Lania commented on the suddenly cold weather. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD: 

A. December 7, 2016 Minutes 
B. Staff Letter 

REPORTS: 
A. DPW REPORT: Mr. Svrcek was not present. There are not updates on the winter park 

activities, except for the painting of the tables by the cub scouts and the planned 
painting of Winshall swings by the Art Guild in March.  

OLD BUSINESS: 

A. Fundraising: Donation letters have gone out again. The slip and slide event is set for 
August 5th and the pavilions are reserved. Joe is working on ideas for the a trivia 
event. Mr. Barclay is working on a 0.5K “Creek Crawl” that could occur before or 
during Hometown Days. Ryan is going to help look at options. The event is planned 
to seek a $5 donation to participate, with free ice cream ($0.75 cost to the park 
board) from Feather n Fin. There was not an update on the pumpkins. Mr. Barclay 
also mention a tug of war event that could occur at the same time as the slip and 
slide, using the pond area at Elms.  

B. 2017 Projects and Maintenance: Mr. Zettel said bids are due in January for the Elms 
Park improvements. The dog park status in unknown. No other large projects are 
planned. Mr. Barclay indicated that that the steel roofs at Winshall could use 
another coat of paint.  

C. Holiday Decorating: The event went smoothly, with better pictures this year. It was 
agreed that the event would also take place in 2017.  

NEW BUSINESS:  

City Council Packet 157 January 9, 2017



 
A. Election of Officers: Rae Lynn was selected as Chair after nominations by Mr. Barclay 

and Mr. Perreault, and an unanimous vote. Mr. Barclay was seated as the Vice-Chair 
as the sole volunteer. Ms. Eskew remains Secretary following the December 7, 2016 
selection process.  

B. Reservation Form: The park reservation form was reviewed and altered to reflect 
the 2017 construction notes.  

 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: No comments. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: It was noted that there were soccer goals in Elms Park that look to be 
junk. The city will take a look. It was also noted that the entry sign at Elms Park needs a new coat of 
paint.  

ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 6:44 p.m. 

NEXT MEETING: February 1, 2017, 6:00 p.m. at the Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building. 

  

_____________________________________ 
Connie Eskew, Secretary 

 

City Council Packet 158 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 159 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 160 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 161 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 162 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 163 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 164 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 165 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 166 January 9, 2017



City Council Packet 167 January 9, 2017


	2017-01-09 Council Packet
	2017-01-09, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2016-12-12  December 12 Council Minutes
	MML Dues
	Comcast Notice
	Comcast
	Interlocal Agreement Est. Regional Police Auth. of Gen Cnty
	Interlocal Pol Auth Agree 9-2016
	Swartz Creek Full Time and Part Time Officers with Addresses
	Department of Police
	Chief RICK CLOLINGER
	Phone: (810)-635-4401                   Swartz Creek, Michigan  48473                     Fax: (810)-635-3728


	2017 SC Asset List
	OPEB Interlocal Cost Sharing Agreement v9
	Exhibits to the OPEB Interlocal Cost Sharing Agreement
	Authority Proposed Budget 2017 Final
	Commercial Lease SC
	Lease Exhibit A
	AQL-C-LTR SWARTZ CREEK MI 17_18
	AQ BID SWARTZ CREEK MI 17_18
	Property tax laws_ Why cities' services haven't recovered from housing bust
	Hydrocorp
	Tower Bids
	Jeff Wright Update.12.28.16
	CE1
	News Articles
	  Inspection List  
	  Monthly Permit List  
	PD Report
	Check Register
	CheckRegister

	Dec 2016 DPS Reports
	Minutes 2017-01-04

	Dixon Proposal



